
 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless 

approved by the Council. 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (May 16, 2016) Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MAY 16, 2016, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 

Mission Statement 
The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 

Vision Statement 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, dynamic and 

diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER   

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  

IV. PRESENTATIONS 

 1. Recognition of Student Commissioners Luis Saavedra and Isamar Ramirez  

 

V. PROCLAMATIONS 

 1.  Approve a proclamation declaring May 15-21, 2016 as    Pages 1-2 

 National Public Works Week 

 

VI. APPOINTMENTS 

1.       Planning Commissioner Appointment of Noelle Torres   Page 3 

 

VII.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
   

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
           (30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 

for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

  

IX. CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Minutes from April 18 and 23, 2016      Pages 4-11  

      

 2. Resolution 2016-3276, A Resolution rejecting all bids for the   Pages 12-15 

 Blaine  Street  Stormwater  Improvements – Phase  1 project 

 

3. Resolution 2016-3300, A Resolution accepting the storm drainage and Pages 16-21 

 access easements for the Blaine Street stormwater improvements project 

 

4. Oregon Department of Transportation Noise Variance    Pages 22-24 

 

5. Northside Community Church Fireworks Noise Variance   Pages 25-28 

 

Agenda continued on next page 

 



 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless 

approved by the Council. 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (May 16, 2016) Page 2 of 2 

IX. CONSENT CALENDAR, continued 
6. Resolution 2016-3280, A Resolution authorizing the City Manager  Pages 29-48 

Pro Tem to enter into a contract with Sungard Public Sector, LLC  

for TRAKiT, a permitting software system 

 

 7. Resolution 2016-3303 Lease of City’s Illinois Street House   Page 49 

  to Joe Hannan  

 

X. PUBLIC HEARING: ADMINISTRATIVE 
 1. Resolution 2016-3287, A Resolution approving the dedication   Pages 50-61 

 of two permanent easements on city owned property located  

 at 305 W. Illinois Street  

 

 2. Resolution 2016-3301, A Resolution approving Adjusted Solid Waste Pages 62-74 

 and Recycling Services Rates for Waste Management effective July 1, 2016 

 

XI. PUBLIC HEARING: LEGISLATIVE 

 1. Ordinance 2016-2801, An Ordinance amending the Newberg   Pages 75-109 

 development code regarding recreational marijuana wholesalers,  

  laboratories, research certificates producers and retailers; and  

  declaring an emergency. 

   

XII.  NEW BUSINESS  

 

1. Resolution 2016-3279, A Resolution appointing Joe Hannan   Pages 110-120 

as City Manager 

 

2. Resolution 2016-3288, A Resolution approving a new design and   Pages 121-123 

 replacement of the existing downtown banners with new banners  

 celebrating George Fox University’s 125th anniversary 

 

3. Resolution 2016-3292, An update on PERS     Page 124 

 

XIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2) (i) Performance Evaluations of Public 

Officers 

  

1. City Attorney Evaluation 

 

XV. ADJOURNMENT  
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 

Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 

two business days prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 

dial 711. 
 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to 

speak on prior to the agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. Speakers who wish the Council to 

consider written material are encouraged to submit written information in writing by 12:00 p.m. (noon) the day of 

the meeting. 



 
 
City of Newberg: 2016 NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Approve a proclamation declaring May 

15-21, 2016 as National Public Works Week. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Russ Thomas 

Dept.: Public Works  

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a proclamation declaring May 15-21, 2016 as National Public Works 

Week.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The Newberg Public Works department joins other public works departments 

across the nation in celebrating the week of May 15-21, 2016 as National Public Works Week.  Since 1960, 

the American Public Works Association has sponsored National Public Works Week. Across North 

America, more than 28,000 members in the US and Canada use this week to energize and educate the public 

on the importance of the contribution of public works to their daily lives. 

 

In Newberg, the Public Works department provides installation, operation and maintenance of water, sewers, 

stormwater, streets, highways, public buildings and grounds.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS):   

With great appreciation and gratitude, we recognize and celebrate the work of these professionals who keep 

our City operating smoothly on a daily basis.  

5/16/16
PAGE 1 



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE WEEK OF MAY 15-21, 2016 

AS NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 
 

 

WHEREAS, public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our 

citizens’ everyday lives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the efficient 

operation of public works systems and programs such as water, sewers, stormwater, streets and 

highways, public buildings and grounds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these facilities 

and services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their planning, design, 

and construction, are vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works officials; and 

 

WHEREAS, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff public works 

departments is materially influenced by the people’s attitude and understanding of the 

importance of the work they perform, 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Newberg, Oregon, the week of May 15-21, 2016, as 

 

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 
 

in the City of Newberg and I call upon all citizens and civic organizations to acquaint themselves 

with the issues involved in providing our public works and to recognize the contributions which 

public works officials make every day to our health, safety, comfort and quality of life. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of 

Newberg to be affixed on this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

        SEAL      Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 2 



 

 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Appoint Noelle Torres to the City of 

Newberg Planning Commission. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Mayor Bob Andrews 

Dept.: Administration 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

To consent to the Mayor’s appointment of Noelle Torres to the Planning Commission to fill a vacant 

position with a term expiring December 31, 2016. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

The Newberg Planning Commission is an eight member committee with one position designated as a 

non-voting student commissioner position.  There is one full-time commissioner position open with the 

selection of Planning Commissioner Patrick Johnson for the District 4 vacancy on the Newberg City 

Council, effective April 6, 2016. 

 

Noelle is a 10 year resident of Newberg who would like to see the City encourage aspects of community 

health through the spaces, events and businesses in the City. She is interested in the position because she 

wants to be an active partner and voice in the community. She wants to develop a deeper understanding of 

planning strategy within the city and the process and development of those choices. She wishes to act as an 

advocate for the families that makeup the community and participate in the choices that ultimately affect the 

environment.  

 

Noelle feels she can contribute to strengthening the city government through her enthusiasm for public 

health, service and outreach. She looks toward finding solutions with both creativity and logical reasoning.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

None. 

 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   

 

The Newberg Planning Commission serves a very important role in the betterment of our community and 

downtown making our City government viable and a great place to grow. 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 3 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Minutes  
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

Dept.: Administration 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Approve City Council minutes from April 18 and 23, 2016. 

5/16/16
PAGE 4 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 1 of 6 

 NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

REGULAR SESSION 

April 18, 2016, 5:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

A joint work session with the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners was held at 5:00 p.m. preceding the meeting. 

Present were Mayor Bob Andrews, Councilors Lesley Woodruff, Denise Bacon, Mike Corey, Patrick Johnson, Stephen 

McKinney and Scott Essin. Yamhill County Chair Mary Starrett, Commissioner Stan Primozich and Commissioner Allen 

Springer were present as was Yamhill County Administrator Laura Tschabold. Also present were City Manager Pro Tem 

Stephen Rhodes, City Attorney Truman Stone, City Recorder Sue Ryan, Finance Director Matt Zook, Public Works 

Director Jay Harris and Community Development Director Doug Rux. 

 

DISCUSSION: Land Use, Transportation and Economic Development. 

 

Yamhill County Chair Mary Starrett said it was a County Commission goal to visit every city in the county and discuss 

issues and concerns specific to each city. Councilor Corey said the Urban Growth Boundary expansion was an issue, 

especially at the State level.  There was discussion on the constraints of existing land uses due to State regulations and the 

needs the communities had that required land including affordable housing and manufacturing. There was discussion on 

solutions, such as working together and lobbying efforts for change in legislation. There was discussion on the lawsuits 

challenging the expansion of city urban growth areas which also needed to be dealt with. 

 

Mayor Andrews brought up some additional issues for the future including the agreement with Newberg and Dundee over 

99W and using the Newberg Urban Area Management Commission (NUAMC).   

 

Chair Starrett discussed transportation. She said the County spent $200,000 yearly on transit service in the Newberg area. 

She said there was a program called Well Ride available for low-income residents. On average they spent $48,000 per 

month on non-emergent transportation for over 500 drop offs and 500 pick-up trips. She said $336,000 was spent by the 

County since October and they needed to have some kind of renumeration for these costs.  

 

Commissioner Springer said aside from McMinnville, Newberg was the only other city in the county that had fixed routes 

that went off of the main line and throughout the city. Up until last year, Newberg was contributing $18,000 towards 

transit, but then it was taken out of the budget. He thought it was critical for the City to participate in providing these 

services. City Manager Pro Tem Stephen Rhodes said it was included in the next fiscal year budget. 

 

Mayor Andrews discussed the maintenance of County roads within the City and the possibility of jurisdictional transfers.  

Mayor Andrews said the City had identified 18 sections of streets that were owned by the County and they needed to 

decide what to do about them. Chair Starrett said their Public Works Director maintained the roads to County standards, 

and they would reimburse the City for two inches of overlay on any road and then would surrender the road to the City. 

They were amenable to discuss jurisdictional transfer. 

 

There was discussion regarding collaboration, affordable housing, economic development, keeping the small town feel of 

Newberg, and future of the West Rock property where the paper mill shut down.  

 

Mayor Andrews asked about the Bike/Ped activities connected to the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. Commissioner Primovich 

said there was an application in for Connect Oregon Grant funding for the trail. He thought connecting all of the trails in 

Newberg would be something to look at in the future.  

 

Commissioner Springer said solving problems took teamwork and they could do much more if they were united than 

divided. He discussed the challenge of the rental market and affordable housing and he thought they needed to work 

together as a team and put pressure on State lawmakers. 

 

Commissioner Primovich said they needed to pull together which would help them meet their goals. These were critical 

issues that needed to be addressed. Newberg had a lot going for it and they could all be a part of making it better and 

enhance the entire County. 

 

Mayor Andrews adjourned the work session at 6:15 p.m. 

5/16/16
PAGE 5 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 2 of 6 

 

Yamhill County Commissioners held a town hall from 6:15 to 7:00 p.m. 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

The Mayor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Scott Essin Stephen McKinney 

 Lesley Woodruff Denise Bacon Mike Corey 

 Patrick Johnson 

  

Staff Present: Stephen Rhodes, City Manager Pro Tem                     Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

Truman Stone, City Attorney                      Jessica Pelz, Associate Planner 

 Doug Rux, Community Development Director           Jason Wuertz, Senior Engineer 

 Steve Olson, Associate Planner 

                           

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The Pledge of Allegiance was performed.  

 

CITY MANAGER PRO TEM’S REPORT:  CMPT Rhodes reported the Tourism Advisory Body and consultants 

toured Newberg and talked about needs and gaps in tourism promotion for the City. He said the Budget Committee toured 

the City as well and looked at its operations including issues in the coming budget. The first budget meeting would be 

held on Tuesday, April 26, in the Public Safety Training Room at 6:00 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Jeanie Sandall stated she was running for the office of Yamhill County Assessor. She spoke about her experience and 

qualifications as well as goals if she was elected. She hoped to do re-appraisals of the County as market values were out of 

date. She would explain property taxes to anyone who had questions. To cut the budget, she would start from the top 

down and take money out of her salary first. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Councilor Johnson said each time there was a liquor license request he had to state that while he worked for the Oregon 

Lottery he did not have any authority over liquor licenses and he had no conflict of interest.  

 

MOTION: Bacon/Corey moved to approve minutes from March 2, March 28, and April 9, 2016; approved an Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission Winery Permit for Et Fille Wines Inc. dba Et Fille Wines; approved an Oregon Liquor 

Control Commission Off-Premises Sales permit for Yamhills Inc. dba Yamhills; Resolution 2016-3278, A Resolution 

authorizing the City Manager Pro Tem to enter into a contract with McClure & Sons, Inc. for the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant On-site Sodium Hypochlorite Generation System project; Resolution 2016-3260, A Resolution to authorize the City 

Manager Pro Tem to enter into a Professional Services Agreement Amendment with Murray Smith and Associates to 

provide additional design services for the City’s Villa Road Improvement project in the amount of $297,555.00; and 

Resolution 2016-3283, A Resolution authorizing the acquisition of storm drainage and access easements for the Blaine 

Street Stormwater Improvement project. Motion carried (7 Yes/ 0 No).  

 

PUBLIC HEARING – ADMINISTRATIVE: Resolution 2016-3268 Master Fee Schedule: 

Mayor Andrews opened the public hearing and called for any abstentions or conflicts of interest on the part of the 

Council. There were none. 

 

City Recorder Sue Ryan gave the staff report. She had compiled the master fee schedule with oversight from CMPT 

Rhodes. It would be adopted once a year and the Finance Department would review the fees to make sure incremental 

increases were being adjusted as needed in a timely fashion. Staff thought the master fee schedule would help staff do 

their jobs more efficiently and would be easier for the public as all the fees would be in one place. No written 

communications had been received. She recommended approval of the resolution. 

 

Public testimony:  None. 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 6 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 3 of 6 

Mayor Andrews closed the public hearing. 

 

Deliberations: 

Councilor Johnson clarified this would establish a year to year cost of living increase for fees. He thought the process for 

public records needed to be easier and less expensive and if they did not give the information to the public, it did not 

promote trust with the City. 

 

MOTION: Corey/Bacon moved to approve Resolution 2016-3268, a Resolution establishing a Master Fee Schedule.  

Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

PUBLIC HEARING - LEGISLATIVE:  Ordinance 2016-2800: 

Mayor Andrews opened the public hearing and called for any abstentions or conflicts of interest on the part of the 

Council. There were none. 

 

City Attorney Stone gave the staff report. He said there had been a mechanism in place for adopting public safety fees 

since 2009. There were two fees, one was to fund police officer positions and the second was to fund two dispatcher 

positions. During the budget process, there was a question about adjusting the fees to reflect economic changes and 

increases in cost, and he found that there was no process for adjustments. This ordinance would create a new process to 

adjust an existing public safety fee dependent upon certain economic criteria. He said those criteria included: a 

presentation on the financial circumstances that had changed since the original enactment of the fee and a presentation on 

the amount of revenue needed to support the resources. This ordinance did not increase the public safety fees. In Section 

3, he referenced the Fiscal Year 2015-2016, and it should be 2016-2017. No written communications had been received. 

He recommended approval of the ordinance. 

 

Public Testimony:  None. 

 

Mayor Andrews closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Corey moved to waive the second reading of Ordinance 2016-2800 and read by title only.  Motion 

carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

MOTION: Bacon/Woodruff moved to approve Ordinance 2016-2800, an Ordinance establishing a process for the 

Council to adjust an existing Public Safety Fee and declaring an emergency. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

Deliberations: 

Councilor McKinney asked if there was an anticipated change to the budget for the public safety fees. CMPT Rhodes said 

the budget included a proposal to increase the fees. 

 

Councilor Corey was not a proponent of increasing fees but understood there was a need for increase due to the cost of 

living. 

  

Councilor Johnson said the Ordinance set up the process to increase or decrease the fee as needed and the suspension of 

the fire fee was different. CA Stone said the fire fee was not a public safety fee adopted under this section of the code, and 

it predated the public safety fee code by many years. The fire fee was done by a resolution of the Council and was 

suspended by resolution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING – LEGISLATIVE:  Ordinance 2016-2794: 

Mayor Andrews opened the public hearing and called for any abstentions or conflicts of interest on the part of the 

Council. There were none. 

 

Associate Planner Pelz gave the staff report. This was a Transportation System Plan amendment for the Wilsonville Road 

relocation. In 2013 there was a TSP amendment for Phase 1 of the Bypass which was adopted. In 2015 ODOT submitted 

an application to change the intersection to a no through movement. The Planning Commission voted to deny the 

recommendation and recommended the City Council deny it and delay the decision until there was further discussion with 

all of the parties. The resolution was an Agreement of Understanding to revise the TSP amendment and realign 

5/16/16
PAGE 7 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 4 of 6 

Wilsonville Road south of Wynooski Road that was the previously approved full bypass final location. This would be a 

text amendment detailing the Wilsonville Road relocation and a temporary right in and right out intersection at the current 

Wilsonville and Springbrook roads intersection until such time as the Wilsonville Road relocation was done and open. 

She explained the several map amendments showing the cul-de-sac and Wilsonville Road relocations. Staff recommended 

adoption of the ordinance.  

 

Kelly Amador and William Ciz from ODOT said they were asking for approval of the changes in the Transportation 

System Plan. These included:  the Wilsonville Road relocation, Wilsonville Road cul-de-sac relocation, new lane 

configuration on OR 219 in the Phase 1 of the Bypass, and Wilsonville and Springbrook Road intersection temporary 

right in and right out. The Wilsonville Road relocation was already in the TSP. This would take Wilsonville Road south to 

a new intersection south of Wynooski Road. How it would be signalized or not signalized at 99W would be discussed at a 

later time in the design process. The preliminary traffic analysis showed that without a signalized intersection it would 

function at a volume/capacity ratio of .78 which was within the Oregon Highway Plan Standard and with a signal it would 

operate at a .64 in 2020 when the intersection would open. Most of the Wilsonville Road relocation would be in Yamhill 

County on EFU land. There was a portion on Adolph Road which was in Newberg. The relocation would require right-of-

way purchase and two residential relocations and one business relocation. The schedule for completion was July 2020. 

The location of the cul-de-sac was not in the TSP, and it would be east of Adolph Road. It would be renamed McCurren 

Court. A portion of the cul-de-sac was in the Newberg UGB and a portion was in Yamhill County. The properties in the 

UGB would continue to access Newberg via the existing Springbrook and Wilsonville roads intersection,which would be 

changed to the Springbrook Road and McCurren Court intersection. The changes to the Wilsonville Road intersection 

would remove any connection to the east. The intersection lane configuration would change and there would be no turn 

lanes or through lanes east of OR 219. Phase 1 of the bypass would open in 2017 and the Wilsonville Road relocation 

would not open until 2020. With the bypass open, there would need to be a temporary right turn in and right turn out at the 

existing Wilsonville Road and Springbrook intersection due to traffic and safety issues. It would be removed in 2020 

when the Wilsonville relocation project was complete.  

 

Councilor Woodruff asked about the volume/capacity ratio and what the acceptable range was for the new intersection.  

Mr. Ciz explained the acceptable range was .8, but for new intersections it was .65 and this was a new intersection. It 

would meet the ODOT mobility standard of .8 when it opened in 2020, but would not meet the ODOT design manual 

standard of .65 without a signal.  

 

Proponents:  Stan Halle, representing the Ladd Hill Neighborhood Association, spoke in favor of the ordinance. He said in 

the last couple months the issue had moved from being adversarial to a collaborative effort. The six parties that signed the 

agreement in March continued to press forward in a timely fashion including ODOT moving forward with funding. The 

notice to proceed for the contractor for Phase 1 had been issued and the discussions for a contract change order from a 

four way to a three way intersection had commenced. This TSP amendment was in line with the process. 

 

Opponents and Neutral:  None. 

 

No written communications had been received. AP Pelz said staff recommended adoption of the ordinance. 

 

Mayor Andrews closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Corey moved to waive the second reading of Ordinance 2016-2794 and read by title only.  Motion 

carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

Councilor Johnson said a citizen had been concerned that the right in, right out was permanent. Councilor Johnson 

clarified it would be temporary and he was in support of the ordinance.  

 

MOTION:  Corey/Essin moved to approve Ordinance 2016-2794, an Ordinance amending the Newberg Transportation 

System Plan to reflect changes necessary to accommodate the relocation of Wilsonville Road to a location south of 

Wynooski Road.  Motion passed (6 Yes/1 No [McKinney]).  

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 8 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 5 of 6 

NEW BUSINESS:  Resolution 2016-3274: 

Community Development Director Rux said this resolution would adopt the Newberg Economic Development Strategy. 

Newberg did not have an overall economic strategy and he explained the steps staff and the Chamber took to create one. 

There was a core facilitation group and the plan was vetted by about 60 different organizations. The comments were wide-

ranging and the group came back with the strategies in the plan. The four pillars in the plan included the industrial sector, 

commercial sector, business development/workforce, and tourism/hospitality and there were strategies under each of the 

pillars. The five initiatives created for the America’s Best Community Competition were also embedded in the strategy. 

This plan had a three-year rolling horizon with short term, mid term, and long term projects. The Chamber Board 

approved the strategy and many other public agencies were in support. Staff recommended adoption of the resolution. 

 

 

Robin Sikkens, Newberg Downtown Coalition, said their Board had unanimously voted to support this resolution and 

acknowledged the hard work done by CDD Rux. The Coalition was committed to implementing the strategy. The 

commercial sector of the document called for completion of the Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan and she 

emphasized the importance of completing this companion effort in time to implement action plans to take advantage of 

the opening of the bypass in 2017. The Board was concerned with the extensive amount of work required to deliver the 

strategy and to accomplish the list it would require collaboration. The NDC accepted the challenge to do its part. 

 

MOTION:  McKinney/Johnson moved to approve Resolution 2016-3274, A Resolution approving the Newberg 

Economic Development Strategy. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

Resolution 2016-3275: 

Associate Planner Olson said Michael Roberts, a local business owner, owned a home on Chehalem Drive which was 

outside the City limits but inside the UGB. It was 1.17 acres and was zoned Low Density Residential. He applied to the 

County for a Home Occupation Permit to operate a small commercial kitchen out of a pole barn that he planned to build 

behind his house. He hoped to be able to produce more ice cream and expand his business. It required a Conditional Use 

Permit with Yamhill County. His family would continue to live in the main house. About 6% of the site would be 

improved and the footprint of the development was small compared to the size of the property. The applicant showed how 

the two rear lots could potentially be created in the future if the applicant took the steps to apply for annexation into the 

City. The development was consistent with the adopted plans. Chehalem Drive was in the TSP and would be a major 

collector at some point in the future. The addition would not create a conflict with any future street improvements. The 

proposed development was limited in scope and allowed for future development of the remainder of the property. Staff 

recommended approval of the resolution. 

 

Michael Roberts, local business owner, enjoyed working in Newberg. He wanted to expand his business and have 

employees in the future.  

 

MOTION:  Woodruff/Bacon moved to approve Resolution 2016-3275, recommending that Yamhill County approve a 

proposed conditional use permit for a Home Occupation commercial kitchen at 1400 NE Chehalem Drive, Yamhill 

County Tax Lot No. 3218CA-2500. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS:  
CR Ryan said the Providence Community Connections Program asked if the Council wanted to sign up as a team for the 

May 7 Neighbor to Neighbor Day. This event would help older neighbors with yard and home maintenance. 

 

Councilor Bacon discussed an email from Sherry Ralston, owner of a medical marijuana dispensary, who was requesting a 

repeal of the ban on early recreational sales. The reason the Council approved the ban was that OLCC had not developed 

rules for recreational sales. OLCC had developed the rules and things had been running smoothly for six months. This was 

a local business who had invested a lot of money in the community and had been turning away dozens of customers. She 

asked that staff bring back a repeal of the ban on early sales of recreational marijuana by medical marijuana dispensaries. 

 

Councilor Essin asked if the City was already out of the running to receive the 25% sales tax since it was banned. CDD 

Rux replied that recreational sales in dispensaries started in October 2015 and would go until December 2016. The State 

was collecting the tax and if the ban was lifted, the dispensaries selling recreational marijuana would have to pay the 25% 

tax to the State and the State would allocate it. He did not know how much the City would receive, especially since OLCC 

5/16/16
PAGE 9 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 18, 2016)  Page 6 of 6 

would use the tax to pay back the loan they took out to create the program and other State and County agencies would be 

receiving a portion of the money as well. The City also had a local 10% tax on recreational marijuana which would be 

paid directly to the City. 

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Essin moved to have staff prepare a Request for Council Action on lifting the ban on the recreational 

sales of marijuana by medical marijuana dispensaries. Motion passed (6 Yes/1 No [McKinney]). 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 p.m.  

 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

        _______________________________ 

         Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

ATTESTED by the Mayor this ___ day of May, 2016. 

 

 

__________________________Bob Andrews, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 10 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (April 9, 2016)  Page 1 of 1 

 NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

SPECIAL SESSION 

APRIL 23, 2016 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Andrews called the meeting to order at 12:10 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Scott Essin Stephen McKinney 

 Lesley Woodruff Denise Bacon Mike Corey 

 Patrick Johnson 

  

  

Staff Present: Stephen Rhodes, City Manager Pro Tem                     Truman Stone, City Attorney 

 Nancy McDonald, Interim Human Resources Director 

 

Also Present: Bob Murray, Cameron Ferguson, Rick Rogers, and Carr Biggerstaff 

                       

    

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2) a Employment of Officers. 
  
Council entered executive session at 12:15 p.m.  The Council exited executive session at 5:25 p.m. 
 
The Council interviewed finalist candidates for the City Manager position. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m.  

 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

        _______________________________ 

         Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

ATTESTED by the Mayor this ____ day of May, 2016. 

 

 

__________________________Bob Andrews, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 11 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3276 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3276 

SUBJECT:  A resolution rejecting all bids for the 

Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements – Phase 1 

project. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Paul Chiu, P.E., Senior Engineer 

Dept.: Engineering Services Department 

File No.:  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3276 rejecting all bids for the Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements – Phase 1 

construction project. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

The city’s Blaine Street stormwater conveyance system has pipes that are under existing buildings, under 

capacity, and at the end of their design life. 

 

Phase 1 of the Blaine Street stormwater improvement project as depicted in Figure 1 below was advertised 

for bid on March 2, 2016. The Engineer’s estimate was in the range of $250,000.00 to $300,000.00. On 

April 13, 2016, the city received and opened two qualified bids from: 
 

(a) Emery & Sons Construction Group for $774,391.00; and 

(b) K&E Excavating, Inc. for $785,344.00. 

 

All of the bids received exceeded the available budget of 

$350,000.00 for the project. Several possible reasons for the high 

bids are additional risks for boring under the railroad, the limited 

site access on private property, the depth of storm pipe and the bid 

environment. Staff will determine the need for design adjustment, a 

higher budget or value engineering prior to re-bid in future. 

 

 

 
 

Figure 1 – 

 

 

 

Proposed phase 1 stormwater 

improvements from Blaine Street 

(south of the 5th Street intersection) to 

the storm outfall. 

 

 

 

Storm outfall 

Schmidt’s property 

Blaine 

Street 

Proposed Storm 

5th Street 

5/16/16
PAGE 12 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3276 PAGE 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

Funding for construction of the Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements – Phase 1 project has been 

appropriated in the current fiscal budget, with additional funding in the next fiscal budget (FY 2016-2017), 

under account number 04-5150-717711. 

 

However, there will be no impact to the construction budget of $350,000.00 because of the bid rejection. The 

project will be re-advertised for bids in future. Other phases of the project will be planned for future fiscal 

years. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 

 

Phase 1 of the project provides upsizing, relocation and replacement for the downstream segment of pipes to 

their outfall through the Schmidt’s property at Blaine Street, south of 5th Street. This project to replace 

deteriorated pipes with new and larger diameter pipes and to mitigate systemic flooding will be temporarily 

on hold until new bids are requested in the future. 

5/16/16
PAGE 13 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3276 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3276 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE BLAINE STREET 

STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS – PHASE 1 PROJECT. 
 

 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. Project Delivery Group, LLC completed the phase 1 design of the Blaine Street stormwater 

improvement project that is needed to replace the aging, under capacity pipes to reduce the risk of 

blockages and sinkholes, and to begin the relocation of pipes away from existing buildings. 

 

2. The Blaine Street stormwater improvements phase 1 project is an approved capital improvement 

project in the 2015-16 and proposed 2016-17 fiscal year budgets. 

 

3. Phase 1 of Blaine Street stormwater improvement project includes, but not limited to, the installation 

of approximately 770 lineal feet of storm line, a 48” steel casing for the Blaine Street railroad 

crossing, and assorted pavement and site restoration work. The proposed work is from Blaine Street 

(south of the 5th Street intersection) to the existing storm outfall. 

 

4. The City of Newberg advertised the project on the city’s website and in the Daily Journal of 

Commerce on March 2, 2016, soliciting bids in accordance with ORS Chapter 279B Public 

Contracting and Public Procurement requirements. 

 

5. Two qualified bids were received on April 13, 2016.  They were from: (a) Emery & Sons 

Construction Group for $774,391.00; and (b) K&E Excavating, Inc. for $785,344.00. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City Council, acting as contract review board for the city, does hereby reject all bids for the 

Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements – Phase 1 project because they have exceeded the available 

construction budget for the project. 

 

2. The City Manager Pro Tem, or the City Manager, is authorized to re-advertise the project and call for 

new bids in the future in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 279C.395. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 14 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3276 PAGE 2 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2016. 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 15 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3300 

SUBJECT:  A resolution accepting the storm 

drainage and access easements for the Blaine Street 

Stormwater Improvements Project 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Paul Chiu, PE, Project Manager 

Dept.: Engineering Services Department 

File No.:  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3300, accepting the storm drainage and access easements for the Blaine Street 

Stormwater Improvements Project. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 

The current stormwater master plan identifies the Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements Project as a 

high priority project for the City of Newberg. Phase 1 of the project, depicted in Figure 1 below, will 

provide upsizing, relocation and replacement for the segment of pipes from Blaine Street, south of 5th 

Street, to their outfall through the Schmidt’s property. 

 

By the authority of Council Resolution No. 2016-3283, city staff 

completed the negotiation with the Schmidt’s for the storm drainage 

and access easements on their property. The proposal is that the  

property owners will receive a negotiated compensation of 

$18,500.00 for dedication of the permanent storm drainage and 

access easements to the city. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 – 

Proposed phase 1 stormwater 

improvements from Blaine Street 

(south of the 5th Street intersection) 

to the storm outfall go through the 

Schmidt’s property. 

 

 

 

 

 

5th Street 

Storm outfall 

Schmidt’s property 
(Tax Lot # R3219AC 05201 

and R3219AC 04301) 

Proposed Storm 

Blaine 
Street 

5/16/16
PAGE 16 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
 

Compensation for the storm drainage and access easements is funded through the approved budget for the 

Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements Project, under account number 04-5150-717711. 

    

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 

Acquisition of the storm drainage and access easements will allow for the construction and maintenance 

of needed stormwater improvements for the Blaine Street Stormwater Improvements Project. 

5/16/16
PAGE 17 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 

 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE STORM DRAINAGE AND ACCESS 

EASEMENTS FOR THE BLAINE STREET STORMWATER 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  
 

 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. Under the laws of the State of Oregon, the City of Newberg is authorized and empowered to locate, 

acquire, access, install, construct, use, repair and maintain stormwater pipe conveyance systems 

with appurtenant structures across private property as are necessary and proper for the city in the 

judgment of the Council. 

 

2. Under the laws of the State of Oregon, the City of Newberg may acquire by purchase, gift, 

condemnation proceedings, or otherwise, storm drainage and access easements as are necessary 

and/or proper to exercise its powers in the judgment of the Council. 

 

3. It is necessary and in the public interest to acquire and accept the storm drainage and access 

easements over the Schmidt’s property (Tax Lot Nos R3219AC 05201 and R3219AC 04301) for 

the purpose of constructing, maintaining, repairing, and reconstructing the public stormwater 

improvements. 

 

4. The stormwater pipe conveyance system is being planned and located in a manner that is most 

compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 

 

5. The city’s consultant completed the negotiation for the acquisition of the storm drainage and access 

easements over the Schmidt’s property and both parties agreed with the negotiated compensation 

of $18,500.00 for dedicating the permanent easements to the city. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council does hereby accept the storm drainage and access easements over the Schmidt’s 

property (Tax Lot Nos R3219AC 05201 and R3219AC 04301) as shown in Exhibit “A” which is 

hereby adopted and by the reference incorporated, for an agreed compensation of $18,500.00. 

 

2. The City Council does hereby authorize the City Manager Pro Tem, or the City Manager, to have 

the easements recorded at Yamhill County accordingly. All documents shall be approved as to 

form and content by the City Attorney. 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 18 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 2 

 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 19 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 3 

EXHIBIT “A” - 1 

 
PROPOSED 

5/16/16
PAGE 20 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3300 PAGE 4 

EXHIBIT “A” - 2 

 

 
PROPOSED 

5/16/16
PAGE 21 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:   PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  __   Motion  X      Information ___ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT:     A motion to approve a noise variance 

request from ODOT for the OR99W and Hwy 219 

reconstruction as part of the Hwy 99w By-Pass 

Project from May 17, 2016 to December 31, 2017 

that would allow for nighttime work as needed 

during the hours of 7 PM and 7 AM. 

 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion:  Chris Bolek, Police Captain  

 

Dept.: Police Department 

  

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Approve the Police Department’s  recommendation to approve a noise variance request from ODOT for the 

OR Hwy 99W and Hwy 219 reconstruction as part of the Hwy 99w By-Pass Project from May 17, 2016 to 

December 31, 2017 that would allow for nighttime work as needed during the hours of 7 PM and 7 AM. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

At the July 7, 2014 Council Meeting, Council approved Ordinance No. 2014-2773, an ordinance amending 

City Code 8.15.150(c) by adding section four (4) to create a council approved variance from the noise 

ordinance for specific events or activities of limited duration. The approval of Ordinance No.2014-2773 

allows the City Council to address specific events or activities that were not anticipated when the noise 

ordinance was adopted, without having to make frequent amendments to the Newberg Municipal Code. The 

amendment became effective August 7th, 2014. 

 

The following information provided by ODOT indicates what portions of the project are planned to be 

worked on with the proposed days and hours are listed below:   

 

Pacific Highway West (OR99W), MP 21.20, Southbound: 

•     Monday between 12:01 a.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

•     Daily, Monday through Thursday between 8:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

 

Pacific Highway West (OR99W), MP 21.84 – MP 22.16, Northbound: 

•     Monday between 12:01 a.m. and 4:30 a.m.  

•     Daily, Monday through Thursday between 8:00 p.m. and 4:30 a.m.  

 

Pacific Highway West (OR99W), MP 21.84 – MP 22.16, Southbound: 

•     Monday between 12:01 a.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

•     Daily, Monday through Thursday between 8:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

•     Friday between midnight and 6:30 a.m. 

 

Hillsboro - Silverton Highway (OR219), both directions: 

•     Monday between 12:01 a.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

5/16/16
PAGE 22 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:   PAGE 2 

•     Daily, Monday through Thursday between 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m.  

•     Friday between 9:00 a.m. and Noon 

•     Daily, Monday through Thursday between 7:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m.  

 

Springbrook Road, both directions:    

•         In areas not impacting any State Highway, lane closures are allowed at any time.  

 

Traffic Lane closures of more than one lane on Pacific Highway West and on the Hillsboro - Silverton 

Highway shall be allowed as indicated in 00220.40(f).   

 

Add the following subsections:  

 

00220.40(e-2-c)  Drive-in Theater Restriction – Do not close or interfere with any facility access to or from 

the subject business during the following times: 

 

•     March 15 – November 15; weekly, Thursday through Sunday; between 6:00 p.m. and 3:00 a.m., daily.    

 

00220.40(f)  Limited Duration Road Closure - The Contractor will be permitted to close all Traffic Lanes in 

one direction of travel for periods not to exceed 15 minutes in duration during signal mast arm or cantilever 

sign placement over the Traffic Lanes at all locations.  This work will only be permitted between the hours 

of:  

 

10:00 p.m. and 4:00 a.m. Monday through Thursday 

 

The Contractor will be permitted to close all Traffic Lanes in both directions of travel for one period not to 

exceed 20 minutes in duration during sign bridge placement over all Traffic Lanes of Pacific Highway West 

(OR99W).  This work will only be permitted between the hours of:   

 

11:30 p.m. and 3:30 a.m. Monday through Thursday   

 

Outreach to the public was a concern by Council when the new process was approved and it should be noted 

that ODOT staff has been in contact with each person that has contacted ODOT with their concerns about 

the construction noise and ODOT intends to give advance warning to those requesting the notice before each 

nighttime pour.  They are also preparing periodic press releases, keeping stakeholders informed, and they 

have inspectors and contractor personnel on-site during all construction activities. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 23 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:   PAGE 3 

The new code states that the City Manager will place the application on the City Council’s agenda for 

the next regular meeting after the date the City Manager receives the application. The City Council may 

grant a variance of limited duration for a specific event or activity if the City Council so chooses and it 

can impose further conditions or limitations if reasonable. A variance granted may be revoked by the 

City Manager or designee in the case of an emergency or safety hazard or if the conditions of the 

variance granted are violated. 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 24 



REQUESTFOR COUNCILACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016

Order Ordinance Resolution Motion XX Information
No. No. No.

Contact Person (Preparer) for this
Motion: Chris Bolek, Police CaptainSUBJECT: A motion to approve a noise variance

for the Northside Community Church fireworks
display date on July 02, 2016 from 6:00 PM to 10:00 Dept.: Police
PM

File No.:

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Police Department’s recommendation to approve a noise variance for the Northside Community
Church fireworks display on July 02, 2016 from 6:00 pm to 10:00 pm.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This event is a public Non-Commercial event with audible sound that will travel in excess of 200 feet.

The variance requestor, Robert Sharp of the Northside Community Church told me this event is open to
anyone who wants to attend, that the Church sends out invitations to the event for an approximate ten block
radius and that there is no fee charged. The church also provides snacks to anyone in attendance, also for no
fee.

This will be the third year the event has taken place. The first year, the event went until 9:30 pm. The
second year, the event was approved for 10:00 pm. However, in 2015, the fireworks display went until
approximately 10:20 pm and in an approximately 30 minute time frame from 9:46 pm to 10:20 pm, the
Newberg-Dundee Police Department received approximately 23 complaints about the noise from the event.

As a result, I sent a letter to the requestor three days after the 2015 event making him aware of the violations
and neighborhood disruption and that 1would not recommend future approval of this event. That letter is
attached with this Request for Council Action.

This year, the requestor has again requested the fireworks display and the accompanying noise be permitted
until 10:30 pm.

Newberg City Code 8.15.150 Section C. 4, allows for the City Council to grant variances of limited duration
from the particular requirements of this chapter for a specific event or activity if the City Council determines
that not granting the variance would produce hardship without equal or greater benefit to the public.

This event does seem to have positive community value however, any public value turns into a deficit if
allowed to exist past 10:00 pm. Due to the public complaints received last year, strict adherence to and firm
compliance with the 10:00 pm end of event time must be maintained.

FISCAL IMPACT:

City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1

5/16/16
PAGE 25 



None

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS):

The new code states that the City Manager will place the application on the City Council’s agenda for the
next regular meeting after the date the City Manager receives the application. The City Council may grant a
variance of limited duration for a specific event or activity if the City Council so chooses and it can impose
further conditions or limitations if reasonable. A variance granted may be revoked by the City Manager or
designee in the case of an emergency or safety hazard or if the conditions of the variance granted are
violated.

City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 2

5/16/16
PAGE 26 



Sue
Textbox
PAGE 27



<v',

Newberg-Dundee
Police Department
P. O. Box 970
401 E. Third Street
Newberg, OR 97132
503-538-8321
Brian T. Casey
Chief of Police

p

OREGON]

June 30, 2015

Mr. Robert Sharp
C/O Northside Community Church
1800 N. Hoskins Street
Newberg, Oregon 97132

Mr. Sharp:

On May 28, 2015 the Northside Community Church was granted a sound permit by me for your event scheduled for Sunday
June 27, 2015 at Northside Community Church, 1800 Hoskins St., Newberg, from 6:30 pm to 10:00 pm.

I recognize that you requested the sound to be extended to 10:30 pm. However, the City Code does not allow me to authorize
this permit past 10:00 pm and the permit was not granted for past 10:00pm

I am aware that your fireworks display extended past 10:00 pm by at least 20 minutes and that the Newberg-Dundee Police
Department received many complaints about the noise your event created; 23 complaints between 9:46 pm and 10:20 pm.

This letter serves as notice to you that if you wish sound variance for a future similar event that your organization must get
approval from the Newberg City Council. All applications for a request to come before council must be submitted at least 30
days prior to your event. You should also know that all sound variance requests that are expected to go to the Newberg City
Council come to me for a recommendation for approval or denial. If you or a member of your organization do make such a
request, I will recommend denial to the City Council. Of course, the City Council has the authority to follow the
recommendation or deviate from it.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 503-554-7710.

Sincerely,

Chris Bolek
Captain-Patrol Division
(503)554-7710
(971)246-1591
Chris.bolekfainewbergoregon.gov

NDPD Communications Briefing Board
NDPD Patrol Briefing Board
Newberg Fire Department - Mayfield

Cc:

5/16/16
PAGE 28 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3280 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3280 

SUBJECT:  A resolution authorizing the City 

Manager Pro Tem to enter into a contract with 

Sungard Public Sector, LLC for TRAKiT, a 

permitting software system 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Kaaren Hofmann, P.E., City Engineer 

Dept.: Engineering Services Department 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3280 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

For years the City’s Engineering and Building Departments used Permits Plus as their electronic 

permitting system.  In 2013/2014, this system was no longer supported by the manufacturer and a new 

system needed to be implemented.  The Building Department decided to utilize the State Building Code 

Division’s ePermitting system by Accela.  One of the main reasons for this decision was the fact that it 

was free to the City. 

 

Almost immediately issues were found with this system.  They include: 

 Corrupted data in the conversion from our legacy system 

 Engineering is unable to issue permits – they are being issued by hand 

 Difficulty in getting data out – data is being entered into a spreadsheet to obtain reports thereby 

duplicating efforts 

 Any revisions that the City would like to see has to be submitted to the State and approved which 

takes time 

 

In early 2014, the Community Development Department, the Engineering Services Department, Code 

Enforcement and the IT Department started evaluating different software packages that would meet all of 

our needs.  Over the course of 8 months, five different systems were demonstrated.  At the end, of this 

phase, TRAKiT by Sungard was the system that was chosen by all of the users. 

 

TRAKiT offers the City: 

 Greater flexibility in that it is completely customizable 

 Citizen portal for access via the website 

 Contractors can submit all permits, etc. online 

 Greater integration –  

o the system can be configured to speak directly to the financial software system eliminating 

the need for duplicate data entry and more errors  

o directly connected to the GIS system 

o Code Enforcement, Planning, Engineering and Building cases all talk to each other 

 Inspection results can be entered from the field 

 

Additionally, the City is the report writer and administrator.  If we need to modify either our reports or 

the system itself we will have the capability to make the revisions ourselves. 

 

The implementation schedule is estimated to be approximately 9 months. 

5/16/16
PAGE 29 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3280 PAGE 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The cost of this software is estimated at $294,860 to serve the needs of the City.  There is also an annual 

fee of $29,400.   

 

The payments will be spread out over the life of the project at significant milestones.  The Engineering 

Services Department has $76,200 budgeted in FY15/16 and has entered an additional $260,000 into 

FY16/17’s budget. After the preparation of the proposed budget, the contract amount was lowered to the 

amount noted above.  The Water Utility Fund can front the initial capital costs with the General, Building, 

Wastewater, Stormwater and Street Utility and System Development Charge Funds paying the Fund back 

over a five year period. 

 

The City Council in April with the adoption of the Master Fee Schedule implemented a 5% technology 

fee on all permits and land use applications to help cover the costs of this software.   

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
The acquisition and implementation of this software will improve transparency, enhance 

interdepartmental communication and will utilize our existing Geographical Information System.  It will 

also reduce redundancies and duplications between the Engineering Services Department, the 

Community Development Department and Code Enforcement.  This addresses several of the Council 

Strategic Priorities specifically technology and improving our communication between our citizens and 

allowing for expanded ability to do business electronically.  

5/16/16
PAGE 30 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3280 PAGE 3 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3280 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER PRO TEM TO 

ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR, LLC 

FOR TRAKIT, A PERMITTING SOFTWARE SYSTEM 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City Council adopted Strategic Priorities for technology that address the need to reduce 

redundancies and focus on the judicious use of funds to meet long-term needs rather than applying 

short-term “band-aid” fixes. Another Council goal is about improving communication and the 

ability of citizens to do City business electronically. 

 

2. The ePermitting system currently in place has several issues including corrupted data, Engineering 

is unable to issue permits, difficulty in getting data out – data is being entered into a spreadsheet 

to obtain reports thereby duplicating efforts and any revisions that the City would like to see has 

to be submitted to the State and approved which takes time. 

 

3. In early 2014, the Community Development Department, the Engineering Services Department, 

Code Enforcement and the IT Department started evaluating different software packages that 

would meet all of our needs.   

 

4. TRAKiT by Sungard was the system that was chosen by all of the users.  TRAKiT offers the City: 

o Greater flexibility in that it is completely customizable 

o Citizen portal for access via the website 

o Contractors can submit all permits, etc. online 

o Greater integration –  

 the system can be configured to speak directly to the financial software system 

eliminating the need for duplicate data entry and more errors  

 directly connected to the GIS system 

 Code Enforcement, Planning, Engineering and Building cases all talk to each 

other 

o Inspection results can be entered from the field 

 

5. The contract is attached as Exhibit A. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Council, acting as contract review board for the City, does hereby authorize the City 

Manager Pro Tem to enter into a contract with Sungard Public Sector for TRAKiT, a permitting 

software system.  The City Manager Pro Tem is further authorized to negotiate any final 

modifications to said contract. 

 

2. The City Council authorizes the expenditure from the Water Utility Fund to front the costs of the 

system with the General Fund, Building Fund, other Utility and System Development Charge 

5/16/16
PAGE 31 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3280 PAGE 4 

Funds to pay back the Water Utility Fund the appropriate proportional amount over no more than 

five fiscal years. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2016. 
 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 32 



 

 

ORDER 

 

By the signatures of their duly authorized representatives below, the SunGard entity identified below and the customer 
identified below (“Customer”), intending to be legally bound, agree to all of the provisions of this Order, and agree that this 
Order represents a separate contract between such SunGard entity and Customer, effective upon the latest date shown 
on the signature page below (“Order Execution Date”).   
 
This Order incorporates and is governed by all of the terms of the SunGard Standard Terms and Conditions version 2016 
January, to be found at http://www.sungardps.com/legal-agreements/ (“SST”) as if the SunGard entity was “SunGard” and 
Customer was “Customer” thereunder.  
 
Capitalized terms not defined in this Order have the meaning given them in the SST. 

SunGard Public Sector LLC (“SunGard”) City of Newberg, OR (“Customer”) 

By:      By:      

Print Name: Print Name: 

Print Title: Print Title: 

 Date Signed:  Date Signed: 

 

CUSTOMER # ________________  SUNGARD ORDER # ______________          

 

SOLUTION AND RELATED INFORMATION  

1. SOLUTION: SunGard TRAKiT applications identified in Project Cost Supplement, Section “A” below, Licensing 
 

2. INITIAL TERM:   Perpetual 
 

3. SCOPE OF USE: 
 
a. DESIGNATED LOCATION(s):  414 E. First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 

 
b. REGION: UNITED STATES 

 

c. COVERED CONFIGURATION 
This Agreement covers the following configuration: 

__15_____ Simultaneous User licenses of the Solution purchased by Customer and installed on  
__unlimited____ workstations. (Platform support Windows 7 Operating System). 

 
 

4. LICENSE AND INITIAL SUPPORT FEES:   
 

A. License Fees:   
 
SEE PROJECT COST SUMMARY SUPPLEMENT, SECTION “A”  

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 33 

http://www.sungardps.com/legal-agreements


 

 
B. Support Fees for the licenses above: 

 
YEAR FEES 

INITIAL SUPPORT TERM No Charge 
FIRST RENEWAL YEAR $ 29,400.00 

 

Software Notes: 

1. Interfaces are interfaces only.  Customer is responsible for obtaining the applicable software, hardware and 
system software from the appropriate third party vendor. 

2. Support for the Initial Support Term is provided at no charge.  The Support Fee in the table above represents 
the support fee for the first Renewal Support Term and is payable only if Customer elects to extend the 
term through the first Renewal Support Term as provided for in Section 9.3 of the SST.  

3. Annual Subscription Fee:  The initial annual subscription term for any subscription product(s) listed above 
shall commence on the Execution Date and extend for a period of one (1) year.  Thereafter, the subscription 
terms shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms, unless either party gives the other part 
written notice of non-renewal at least sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the then-current term. The then-
current fee will be specified by SunGard in an annual invoice to Customer thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration of then-current annual period.   

 
 

5. SUPPORT TERM: 
 

a. INITIAL SUPPORT TERM: 12 months from the Order Execution Date.  
 

b. RENEWAL SUPPORT TERM(S):  Additional one year renewal periods commencing upon the expiration of the Initial 
Support Term (or anniversary thereof). 
 

 
6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:  

 
See Project Cost Supplement, Section “B” 
 
Professional Services Notes: 
 

1. Pricing is a good faith estimate based on the information available to SunGard at the time of execution of this 
Order.  The total amount that Customer will pay for these services (i.e., the “TOTAL SERVICES FEE”) will vary 
based on the actual number of hours of services required to complete the services. If required, additional 
services will be provided on a time and materials basis at hourly rates equal to SunGard’s then-current list price 
rates for the services at issue. 
 

2. Travel and living expenses are additional and will be billed monthly as SunGard renders the services. 
 
 

8.    SUMMARY OF COSTS AND PAYMENT TERMS: 

 

APPLICABLE TAXES ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE SCHEDULES ABOVE, AND, IF APPLICABLE, WILL BE  
ADDED TO THE AMOUNT IN THE PAYMENT INVOICE(S) BEING SENT SEPARATELY TO CUSTOMER. 
 

SUMMARY OF COST Fees

Solution License Fees 147,000$      

Professoinal Services (excluds: Conversions & Customizations) 110,360$      

Data Conversions 20,000$       

Customizations/Integrations 17,500$       

Total 294,860$      

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 34 



 

The amounts noted above shall be payable as follows: 

License Fee:   
$76,200 the Execution Date. 
$70,800 due July 1st, 2016 

 
Annual Support Fees: Support Fees are due thirty (30) days prior to the commencement of the Renewal Support Term for 
which such fees are being remitted.   
 
Professional Services Fees (includes: Discovery Phase, Configuration Phase, Testing Phase, Education Phase, Launch 
Phase, and Reports & Forms Development): On invoice daily, as incurred. 
 
Data Conversion Fees: 50% July 1st 2016; 50% on invoice, upon completion. 
 
Customizations/Integrations Fees: 50% July 1st 2016; 50% on invoice, upon completion. 
 
 
9.  ADDRESSES: 

 
a. CUSTOMER ADDRESS FOR INVOICES: __________________________________________  

 
b. CUSTOMER ADDRESS FOR NOTICES: __________________________________________ 

 
c. CUSTOMER ADDRESS FOR SOFTWARE SHIPMENT: ___________________________________  

 
d. SUNGARD’S ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:   

 
SunGard Public Sector LLC 
Attn: Legal Counsel 
1000 Business Center Drive 
Lake Mary, FL  32746 
 

 
10.  LIABILITY CAP:     The greater of ten thousand US dollars ($10,000) or the License Fee actually paid by Customer 
to SunGard under this Order 

11. SPECIFIED CONFIGURATION:  Host(s) or client server configuration(s) and/or combinations of host(s) and client 

server configuration(s) within the United States of America for which SunGard supports the Solution.  Customer 

acknowledges that certain Solutions software may require specific host or client configurations.  Customer, as soon as 

reasonably practicable, will provide a detailed written description of the specified configuration so that SunGard can 

confirm that it is a configuration on which SunGard supports use of the Solution. 

 
12. Regulatory Access.  Not withstanding provisions in Section 8.4 of the SST, Regulatory Access, is hereby amended 
to include reference to the Oregon Public Records Law (OPRL) (ORS 192.420 et. seq.) including interpretations of such 
law by the Oregon Attorney General's office.  
 
Any document submitted under this contract that the contracting party deems to be a "trade secret" must be specifically 
designated as such by the following method: 
 

•  The top of each page of the document shall be marked "TRADE SECRET NOT PUBLIC RECORD". 
•  This designation shall be in bold print and a font larger than the rest of the document such that it is 

conspicuous. 
•  In the event that the trade secret is computer code and the contracting party is unable to accomplish the 

above designation, the contracting party will specifically inform Customer of the exact items deemed trade 
secrets by sending a letter addressed to the City Attorney with a list of the specific items in detail 
sufficient to separate material which is a trade secret, from material which is not a trade secret.  This letter 
must be received by Customer prior to receipt of the material deemed a trade secret. 

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 35 



 

  
The Trade Secret exemption under ORS 192.501(2) is a conditional exemption, meaning that there may be circumstances 
under which Customer is required to disclose trade secrets when Customer believes that the public interest requires 
disclosure.  Unless there is clear and convincing evidence of bad faith on behalf of Customer, the parties agree that 
Customer may unilaterally make the determination whether to release the information. The parties further agree that there 
shall be no liability on behalf of Customer for such a determination and release of information, absence clear and 
convincing evidence of bad faith. 
 
13. Choice of Law; Severability.  Not withstanding provisions in 10.10 (a) Jurisdiction and Governing Law of the 
Agreement, is hereby changed to be in accordance with the, laws of the State of Oregon, with jurisdiction in the Yamhill 
County Circuit Court. 
 
14. OTHER TERMS APPLICABLE TO THIS ORDER:  
  

 PROJECT COST SUPPLEMENT 

 SUPPORT SUPPLEMENT 

 SUNGARD TRAVEL EXPENSE GUIDELINES 

 PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

 

  

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 36 



 

PROJECT COST SUPPLEMENT 

 

A. LICENSING      

Core Suite $67,500 15 Users (concurrent)  

GeoTRAK     

PermitTRAK  

ProjectTRAK    

AEC TRAK    

CodeTRAK     

CRM TRAK 

Regulatory Licensing Suite $15,000 5 Users (concurrent)  

GIS Engine – Standard $12,500    

Mobility – iTRAKiT Inspect & Code modules $20,000    

eCitizen Portal  $20,000    

Cashiering Suite – Standard Merchant $12,000    

Sub-total:      $  147,000 

Total Licensing:       $ 147,000 

 

B. SERVICES      

Discovery Phase      

Upfront Remote Training $1,280 8 Remote Hours  

Onsite Meetings $4,800 24 Onsite Hours  

Remote Reviews $8,000 50 Remote Hours  

Configuration Phase      

Remote Configuration $35,000 200 Remote Hours  

Testing Phase      

Onsite Training $3,840 24 Onsite Hours  

Onsite Meetings $8,000 40 Onsite Hours  

Remote Configuration $17,500 100 Remote Hours  

Education Phase      

Onsite End User $12,800 80 Onsite Hours   

Remote eTRAKiT Admin $640 4 Remote Hours  

Remote Administrator $750 1 Attendee(s)  

Remote Report Writing $750 1 Attendee(s)  

Launch Phase      

Onsite Go Live Assistance $3,200 16 Onsite Hours  

Data Conversion      

Assessor/GIS Connect $7,000    

Accela, State BCD database $13,000    

Reports & Forms      

Standard Report Library Included 100 Reports  

Customized Reports $1,800 8 Remote Hours  

Permit Library $3,500 1 Library  

Enforcement Library $2,500 1 Library  

Plan Corrections Library 

Regulatory License Library 

$2,500 

$3,500 

1 

1 

Library 
Library  

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 37 



 

Customizations/Integrations      

Enhancements $15,000    

Financial System: Springbrook $2,500    

Total Services:    $147,860 

Total Licensing & Services:       $294,860   

      

APPLICABLE TAXES ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE SUMMARY ABOVE, AND, IF APPLICABLE, WILL BE ADDED TO THE AMOUNT IN THE 

PAYMENT INVOICE(S) BEING SENT SEPARATELY TO CUSTOMER. 

  

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 38 



 

SUPPORT SUPPLEMENT 

1. SunGard shall provide to Customer, during SunGard's support hours as set forth in the Support Standards below 
("Support Hours"), telephone assistance regarding Customer's proper and authorized use of a new edition of a Solution 
or Custom Modification (the “Release”), as applicable. 

2. SunGard shall provide to Customer, during the Support Hours, commercially reasonable efforts in solving Errors reported 
by Customer in accordance with this Order.  Customer shall provide to SunGard reasonably detailed documentation and 
explanation, together with underlying data, to substantiate any Error and to assist SunGard in its efforts to diagnose, 
reproduce and correct the Error.  These support services shall be provided by SunGard at Customer location(s) if and 
when SunGard and Customer agree that on-site services are necessary to diagnose or resolve the problem.  If a reported 
Error did not, in fact, exist or was not attributable to a defect in the Solution or an act or omission of SunGard, then 
Customer shall pay for SunGard's investigation and related services at SunGard’s standard professional services rates. 
Customer must provide SunGard with such facilities, equipment and support as are reasonably necessary for SunGard 
to perform its obligations under this Order, including remote access to the Specified Configuration. 

3. Customer shall promptly install and/or use any Release provided by SunGard to avoid or mitigate a performance problem 
or infringement claim.  All modifications, revisions and updates to the Solution shall be furnished by means of new 
Releases of the Solution and shall be accompanied by updates to the Documentation whenever SunGard determines, in 
its sole discretion, that such updates are necessary.   

4. Support Surcharge Imposed In Certain Instances:  At the commencement of any Renewal Support Term where 
Customer is operating on a Solution version that is more than two (2) general release versions behind the then-
current release for any Solution, SunGard will assess a ten percent (10%) surcharge over and above the support 
fee for that Renewal Support Term, with such surcharge to be imposed on a prorated basis for the portion of the 
Renewal Support Term that Customer remains on a general release version that is more than two (2) releases 
behind the then-current release of the Solution in question. Once Customer is using a release that is no more 
than two (2) general release versions behind the then-current release, the support surcharge will be removed on 
a prospective basis, as of the date that Customer is using the release that is no more than two (2) general release 
versions behind the then-current release. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 39 



 

Support Standards 
 
I. Support Hours: Hours During Which SunGard Public Sector’s Telephone Support Will be Available to Customer in 

Connection with the Provision of Maintenance:  Unless otherwise noted in the Order as to Support Type, support hours are 

Monday through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. Customer’s Local Time within the continental United States, excluding holidays 
(“5x9”). 

 
II. Targeted Response Times.   

 

“Notification” means a communication to SunGard’s help desk by means of: (i) SunGard’s web helpline; (ii) the 
placement of a telephone call; or (iii) the sending of an e-mail, in each case, in accordance with SunGard’s then-
current policies and procedures for submitting such communications. 
 
With respect to SunGard’s support obligations, SunGard will use diligent, commercially reasonable efforts to respond 
to Notifications from Customer relating to the Solution or Custom Modifications identified in the Order in accordance 
with the following guidelines with the time period to be measured beginning with the first applicable SunGard 
“Telephone Support” hour occurring after SunGard’s receipt of the Notification: 

 

Priority Description Response Goal* 
 

Resolution Goal* 
 

Urgent 

1 

A support issue shall be considered Urgent when it 

produces a Total System Failure; meaning 
SunGard’s Solution/Custom Modification is not 
performing a process that has caused a complete 
work stoppage.  

SunGard has a stated 
goal to respond within 
60 minutes of the 
issue being reported 
and have a resolution 
plan within 24 hours.  

Although resolution 
times vary depending 
on the exact issue and 
customer 
environment, 
SunGard has a stated 
goal to resolve an 
urgent issue within 24 
hours or provide a 
resolution plan with 
urgent issues within 
24 hours of the issue 
being reported. 
 
A resolution plan 
details the steps 
necessary to 
understand and 
possibly resolve the 
issue. 
 
 
 
 

Critical 

2 

A support issue shall be considered Critical when 

a critical failure in operations occurs; meaning 
SunGard’s Solution/Custom Modification is not 
performing a critical process and prevents the 
continuation of basic operations.  Critical problems 
do not have a workaround. This classification does 
not apply to intermittent problems.  

SunGard has a stated 
goal to respond within 
two hours of the issue 
being reported. 

Non-
Critical 

3 

A support issue shall be considered Non-Critical 

when a non-critical failure in operations occurs; 
meaning SunGard’s Solution/Custom Modification 
is not performing non-critical processes, but the 
system is still usable for its intended purpose or 
there is a workaround. 

SunGard has a stated 
goal to respond within 
four hours of the issue 
being reported. 

Minor 

4  

A support issue will be considered Minor when the 

issue causes minor disruptions in the way tasks are 
performed, but does not affect workflow or 
operations.  This may include cosmetic issues, 
general questions, and how to use certain features 
of the system. 

SunGard has a stated 
goal to respond within 
24 hours of the issue 
being reported. 

 * Measured from the moment a Case number is created.  As used herein a “Case number” is created when a) SunGard’s 
support representative has been directly contacted by Customer either by phone, email, in person, or through SunGard’s 
online support portal, and b) when SunGard’s support representative assigns a case number and conveys that case number 
to the Customer.     

Customer must provide remote access to its facility using a SunGard approved remote access client so that SunGard can 
perform the support obligations and/or services under this Order; and will provide appropriate security access and accounts 
for SunGard staff and each session participant.   

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 40 



 

SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR TRAVEL EXPENSE GUIDELINES 

 

SunGard will adhere to the following guidelines when incurring travel expenses: 

All arrangements for travel are to be made through the SunGard Corporate Travel Agent unless other 

arrangements have been made with the Customer and are documented in writing.   

AIR TRAVEL – SunGard will use the least expensive class of service available with a minimum of seven (7) day, 

maximum of thirty (30) day, advance purchase. Upon request, SunGard shall provide the travel itinerary as the receipt 

for reimbursement of the air fare and any fees.  Fees not listed on the itinerary will require a receipt for reimbursement.  

Trips fewer than 250 miles round are considered local. Unless a flight has been otherwise approved by the Customer, 

Customer will reimburse the current IRS approved mileage rate for all local trips.  

LODGING –Reasonable lodging accommodations are reimbursable, up to $125 per night. If, depending on the city, 

reasonable accommodations cannot be secured for $125 per night, Customer’s prior approval will be required.  Upon 

request by Customer, the hotel receipt received upon departure will be submitted for reimbursement.  All food items, 

movies, and phone/internet charges are not reimbursable.  

RENTAL CAR – Compact or Intermediate cars will be required unless there are three or more SunGard employees 

sharing the car in which case the use of a full size car is authorized.  Gas is reimbursable however pre-paid gas 

purchases will not be authorized and all rental cars are to be returned with a full tank of gas. Upon request, receipts for 

car rental and gas purchases will be submitted to Customer.  SunGard shall decline all rental car insurance offered by 

the car rental agency as staff members will be covered under the SunGard auto insurance policy. Fines for traffic 

violations are not reimbursable expenses. 

OTHER TRANSPORTATION – SunGard staff members are expected to use the most economical means for traveling 

to and from the airport (Airport bus, hotel shuttle service). Airport taxi or mileage for the employee’s personal vehicle 

(per IRS mileage guidelines) are reimbursable if necessary.  Upon request, receipt(s) for the taxi will be submitted to 

Customer.  Proof of mileage may be required and may be documented by a readily available electronic mapping service. 

The mileage rate will be the then-current IRS mileage guideline rate (subject to change with any change in IRS 

guidelines).   

OTHER BUSINESS EXPENSES – Parking at the airport is reimbursable.  Tolls to and from the airport and while 

traveling at the client site are reimbursable. Tipping on cab fare exceeding 15% is not reimbursable. Porter tips are 

reimbursable, not exceeding $1.00 per bag. Laundry is reimbursable when travel includes a weekend day or Company 

Holiday and the hotel stay is four nights or more.  Laundry charges must be incurred during the trip and the limit is one 

shirt and one pair of pants/skirt per day. With the exception of tips, receipts shall be provided to Customer upon request 

for all of the aforementioned items.  

MEALS  

$52.00 per day Standard Per Diem  

$10.40 – Breakfast 

$13.00 – Lunch 

$28.60 – Dinner 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 41 



 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

 

 
 

 

 

Statement of Work (____ pages in total, including an additional cover page plus a table of contents) are inserted 

immediately following this Cover Page. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-3280 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 42 



TRAKiT Proposal for the City of Newberg, OR 

May 16, 2016

Permitting Software
TRAKiT

5/16/16
PAGE 43 



TRAKiT: 100% Web-based, Integrated Solution 

eTRAKiT
Web based 

Citizen & Contractor 
Access

GIS

GIS Interface to Spatially 
View City’s Data

GeoTRAK Land Management
iTRAKiT

Mobile Inspection
Capability

Central Contacts 
Database

AECTRAK

CodeTRAK

Code Enforcement
& Compliance

ProjectTRAK

Planning & Related
Development

PermitTRAK
Permitting, Plan 

Check,  
Inspections, 

Issuance & C of O

5/16/16
PAGE 44 



Increased Communication & Collaboration
City-Wide & External – One Platform for All

5/16/16
PAGE 45 



User Friendly GIS Interface to City’s Maps & GIS Data

gis
?

GPS
Routing for 
Inspectors

Spatial View 
of City 
Activity

Drawing 
Tools

User Friendly for 
the average, non-
GIS specialists

Measurement 
Tools

Spatial Reporting

Integrated Street & 
Bird’s Eye View via 
Google Map

Spatial Queries on 
TRAKiT Data 

5/16/16
PAGE 46 



Increased Government Transparency

Public Facing Web Portal 
for Citizens & Contractors

• Simple Interface the public to learn and adopt 
into practice

• Convenient 24/7 Online access for Citizens & 
Contractors

• Paperless Applications

• Digital plan-set submittals

• Easily submit inspections requests

• Real-time Permit and Project status updates

• View of activity within the City 

• Significant reduction in processing times

5/16/16
PAGE 47 



The Old Way                    The New Way

- Paper based Applications

- Manually distribute Applications 
Attachments

- Send notices by mail

- Store paper files in bins, racks

- Report generation

- Electronically upload plans

- Electronically routed

- Concurrent review

- Electronic notices 

- Store plans electronically

- Quickly generate reports 
within minutes

Automate & Streamline Current Processes 
5/16/16
PAGE 48 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA INFORMATION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution       Motion        Information XX 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 2016-3303 
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Item: Jay Harris 

Dept.:  

File No.:  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

Staff is preparing Resolution 2016-3303, a lease of the City’s Illinois Street House to Joe Hannan for the 

City Council meeting on May 16, 2016. The RCA for this Resolution will be sent out on Friday, May 13. 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 49 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2016-3287 

SUBJECT:  A Resolution approving the dedication 
of two permanent easements on city owned property 
located at 305 W. Illinois Street. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Jay Harris 
Dept.: Public Works 
File No.:  

HEARING TYPE:  ADMINISTRATIVE 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3287. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 

The City of Newberg owns approximately 0.45 acres of property at 305 W. Illinois Street, shown as Tax Lots 
1601 and 1602 on Yamhill County Assessors Map 3S-2W-18CA, commonly known as the highway 240 lift 
station and house.  The site is located on the north side of W. Illinois street (Hwy 240) near the intersection 
of N. Morton Street. 
 
The city purchased the 0.45 acre property single family home site in March of 2009 by Council Resolution 
#2008-2822 for the construction of the Highway 240 pump station.   
 
In June of 2010, Council Resolution #2010-2904 authorized the City Manager to award the construction 
contract to Mortenson Construction for the Highway 240 lift station and force main project.  Mortenson 
Construction completed the lift station and force main improvements in February of 2011.  
 
In 2012, city staff completed the land use planning and surveying to partition the existing house from the lift 
station site.  In December of 2012, Yamhill County Partition Plat #2012-21 recorded, which completed the 
division of the property into two parcels.  After the new property corners were set for the new parcels, Mr. 
Stan Bunn, the adjacent property owner at 301 W. Illinois Street, raised concerns that the property line is 
located in the side yard to his house and did not follow the existing retaining wall and fence line between the 
two properties, as shown in the two pictures below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Picture #1: Taken in the 
side yard area of the Bunn 
residence looking east.  The 
Bunn Residence is on the 
left and the rear yard 
retaining wall and City 
owned shed are on the right. 
The existing property line is 
the solid line. The proposed 
easement limit line is the 
dashed line. 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 50 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 PAGE 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Bunn is contends that he should own the property that is under dispute, and alleges that until the 
property survey was completed, all property owners assumed that the property line was adjacent to the wall 
and fence locations.  The cost to complete the land use planning and surveying for a lot line adjustment 
between the two properties is in excess of $5,000.00.  Mr. Bunn has agreed to accept landscape and 
exclusive easements in lieu of adjusting the property lines, which allows all parties to continue their existing 
use of their respective properties.  
 
Parcel 1, the existing house parcel, was listed for sale last year with Kris Horn at Coldwell Banker.  The city 
received an offer to purchase the property, which was contingent on dedication of the easement on Parcel 1.  
The buyers offer was eventually retracted due to the requirement to grant the easement to Mr. Bunn.  The 
proposal is for Council to consider the dedication of the easements to Mr. Bunn, city staff will then re-list the 
house for sale after the easements are recorded at Yamhill County. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The value of the city parcels may be reduced by the granting of both the exclusive and landscape easements. 
 When assigning a reduction in value to a property, items to consider would be: limitations to surface uses, 
easement location, can landlord alter the easement area, maintenance responsibilities, landowner rights to 
use the easement area, loss of view, impact to security, and who pays the taxes and insurance on the 
property. Per the International Right of Way Association, easements that have a nominal effect on use or 
utility of a property could potentially reduce the value of the encumbered property up to 10%.  An opinion of 
value of each easement is estimated below: 
 
Parcel 1: (existing house) 
Lot area=10,625 sf. 
Easement Area: 597 sf.  
Yamhill County Assessors Land value= $113,555.00 or $10.69 per square foot 
Landowner has surface use limitations=yes 
Easement location: North of existing retaining wall/fence and outside of existing rear yard 
Can landowner alter easement area= no 
Is landowner responsible for easement maintenance= no 
Is there a loss of view or impact to security= no 
Who pays for property taxes and insurance= Landowner 
 
General observations: The dedication of the easement would have minimal impact to the property value as 

Picture #2: Taken in the 
side yard area of the Bunn 
residence looking west.  The 
Bunn Residence is on the 
right and the fence of the 
City Hwy 240 pump station 
is on the left. The existing 
property line is the solid line. 
The proposed easement 
limit line is the dashed line. 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 51 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 PAGE 3 

 
 

 
   

    
 

 
 

  
  
    

  
 

      
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

   

the  area  encumbered  by  the  proposed  easement  is  not  part  of  the  rear  yard that  is  in  active  use,  as  the 
easement area is located on the north side of the rear yard fence/wall.

Impact to property value: The exclusive easement significantly limits the use of the easement area by the
landowner and potentially reduces the value of the property encumbered by the easement upwards of 10%. 

Reduction in value= 10% x 597 sf x $10.69/sf= $638.19

Parcel 2: (existing pump station site)
Lot area=8,988 sf.
Easement Area: 1,136 sf.
Yamhill County Assessors Land value= $89,000.00 or $10.10 per square foot
Landowner has surface use limitations=yes
Easement location: North of existing pump station fence and in the required building setback
Can landowner alter easement area= yes
Is landowner responsible for easement maintenance= no
Is there a loss of view or impact to security= no
Who pays for property taxes and insurance= Landowner

General  observations: The  area  encumbered  by  the  easement  is  also  not  actively  used by  the  city, is  a 
required building setback area, and the easement area serves as a landscape buffer between the wastewater 
pump station activities and the rear yard activities at the Bunn property.

Impact to property value:  The granting of the landscape easement by the city potentially reduce the property 
value of the property within the easement upwards of 5%. The maintenance of the easement area by Mr. 
Bunn will reduce activities needed to be completed each growing season by the city.

Reduction in value= 5% x 1,136 sf x $10.10/sf= $573.68

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:

The completion of the highway 240 pump station project has significantly reduced the number of wastewater 
overflows at the Dayton pump station into Chehalem Creek. The dedication of the easements to Mr. Bunn 
will allow for the sale of excess city owned property and complete the high priority project identified in the 
2007 Sewerage Master Plan Update. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

5/16/16
PAGE 52 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEDICATION OF TWO PERMANENT 

EASEMENTS ON CITY OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT 305 W. 
ILLINOIS STREET. 

 

 
RECITALS: 

 
 

1. The City of Newberg owns approximately 0.45 acres of property at 305 W. Illinois Street, shown as 
Tax Lots 1601 and 1602 on Yamhill County Assessors Map 3S-2W-18CA, commonly known as the 
highway 240 lift station and house.  The site is located on the north side of W. Illinois street (Hwy 
240) near the intersection of N. Morton Street. 

 
2. The 2007 City of Newberg Sewerage Master Plan identified a priority project to reduce the winter 

wastewater overflows into Chehalem Creek at the Dayton Avenue pump station.  The city purchased 
the 0.45 acre property single family home site located at 305 W. Illinois Street for $282,000 in 
March of 2009 by Council Resolution #2008-2822 for the construction of the Highway 240 pump 
station.   
 

3. The lift station and force main improvements were completed in February of 2011, which began 
bypassing flows away from the Dayton Avenue pump station.  In 2012, Partition Plat #2012-21 
recorded, which completed the division of the property into two parcels.  Parcel 1, the existing house 
parcel, was listed for sale last winter with Coldwell Banker. 
 

4. In 2012, Mr. Stan Bunn, the adjacent property owner at 301 W. Illinois Street, raised concerns that 
the common property line does not follow the existing retaining wall and fence line between the two 
properties. 

 
5. The City listed Parcel 1 (existing home site) last year and received an offer to purchase the property.  

The potential buyer withdrew their offer to purchase the site due to the boundary line dispute. 
 

6. Mr. Bunn has agreed to accept an exclusive easement as shown on Exhibit A, and a landscape 
easement shown on Exhibit B; both referenced exhibits are hereby incorporated.  The dedication of 
the two easements by the city to Mr. Bunn will settle the boundary line dispute.  The granting of the 
landscape and exclusive easements will allow for the use of all properties to remain as-is, and will 
also allow for the City to commence activities to sell Parcel 1, the existing home site. 
 

7. Oregon Revised Statutes 221.725, requires published notice of the public hearing for sale of any 
interest in real property held by the City, which in this case includes the granting of the landscape 
and exclusive easements.  Notice was published on May 11, 2016, in the Newberg Graphic, a 
newspaper of general circulation that meets the requirements of the Statute. 
 

8. In compliance with ORS 221.725, a public hearing was held with the opportunity for any resident of 

5/16/16
PAGE 53 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3287 PAGE 2 

the city, or members of the general public, to present written or oral testimony.  Evidence of market 
value of the transfer of interests in the real property, was fully disclosed by the City Council at the 
public hearing. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City Council approves the dedication of the exclusive easements to benefit the Bunn property, 

adjacent and north of parcel 1 and parcel 2 of partition plat 2012-21. 
 

2. The City Council delegates, authorizes, and directs the city manager, or city manager pro-tem, to 
perform all necessary acts to create, modify, and execute all necessary documents, and carry out any 
other necessary matters in order to complete the dedication of the easements. All documents and 
agreements shall be approved as to form and content by the City Attorney. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th  day of May, 2016. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 54 



1 | P a g e  
Exclusive Easement 

 

            
 

May ____, 2016 
 

Exclusive Easement 
 

The City of Newberg as grantor does grant to Stan Bunn as grantee a perpetual easement in the following 
described property: 
 

An easement for the benefit of Stan Bunn across Parcel 1 Partition 2012-21 
 

An easement in the Northeast ¼ Southwest ¼ Section 18 Township 3 South, Range 2 West, W.M. Yamhill County, 
Oregon and being across that tract of land shown as Parcel 1 Partition 2012-21, the exterior boundary being more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Beginning at a point which bears North 67º 47’ 57” West 2.43 feet from the Northeast corner of Parcel 1 of 
Partition 2012-21; thence North 67º 47’57” West along the north line of said Parcel 1 a distance of 96.57 
feet to the Northwest corner of Parcel 1; thence South 0 º 27’ 08” West along the boundary between Parcel 
1 and 2 of said partition 14.17 feet; thence South 56 º 42’ 52” East 4.45 feet; thence South 84º 26’ 53” East 
18.50 feet to a point which is 0.25 feet northerly of the extension of an existing retaining wall westerly; 
thence South 74º 58’ 23” East 69.78 feet parallel to and 0.25 feet northerly of wall to the point of beginning. 

 

The easement is adjacent to the property owned by Stan Bunn and shall run with the land.  The easement is for the 
full use and enjoyment of the easement area for residential yard and landscape purposes not prohibited by the city 
of Newberg Municipal Code and shall be exclusive use.  However, the owner or agent of the servient estate may 
come upon the easement area for necessary repair of said adjacent property fence. 
 

If owner of adjacent property comes on to said easement property for reasonable and necessary repair or 
maintenance of their adjacent fence they will promptly return the easement property to its condition prior to the 
repair. 
 
Grantee shall be allowed to place a fence on the easement area if Grantor substantially lowers or removes the 
fence on Grantor’s northern border.  Placement of any fence by Grantee shall allow sufficient space for Grantor to 
maintain the Grantor’s fence and wall and should Grantee’s fence interfere with this right, Grantee shall remove 
such fence at Grantee’s cost.   
 

Grantee shall have full and exclusive use and control of the property except for said maintenance and repair of the 
fence. 
 

This easement has been granted in exchange for good and valuable consideration including $5.00. 
 
 
BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE 
PERSON’S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON 
LAWS 2007. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF 
APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING 
FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY 
THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 
215.010, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING 
OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY 
OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 
2007. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this easement on this          day of                 , _____. 
 
 
 

      
Steve Rhodes 
City Manager, Pro Tem 
City of Newberg 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 55 

harrisj
Textbox
EXHIBIT "A"



2 | P a g e  
Exclusive Easement 

 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF OREGON   ) 

  ) s.s. 
County of Yamhill         ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, ____, by Steve Rhodes. 
 
                                                                                 
 
     
Notary Public for Oregon 
My Commission expires:                                          
 
        
ACCEPTED:       APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
             
Stan Bunn       Truman A. Stone, City Attorney  
 
         
Dated:         Dated:      
 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 56 



5/16/16
PAGE 57 



 

 
1 LANDSCAPE EASEMENT 
 
   

  
 

LANDSCAPE EASEMENT  
 
 
The City of Newberg, as grantor, does grant to Stan Bunn, as grantee, a perpetual easement in the following described 

property: 
    SEE EXHIBIT B LEGAL DESCRIPTION & SKETCH 
 

This easement is over land owned by the City of Newberg (servient estate) and adjacent to the property owned by Stan 
Bunn (dominant estate) and shall run with the land. The easement is for landscape purposes and shall be used by grantee for 
landscape, lawn and yard purposes only. 

 
The landscaping within this easement shall be maintained substantially in the same condition as exists at the time of 

recording of this easement. No change shall be made without prior written consent of the servient estate owner.  No building, 
masonry wall, fences, or other structures shall be erected within the easement. The grantee shall be allowed to place plantings 
along the southerly line of the easement for screening purposes where no fence line exists and where it will not interfere with 
grantor’s access to the easement area. Those that currently exist are excepted. 

 
The landscaping within the easement shall be maintained in good order. In the event that this condition is violated, or the 

screening plants interfere with access, the servient estate owner shall notify the dominant estate owner in writing of any 
deficiency. If the deficiencies are not corrected within 20 days, the servient estate order may elect to perform maintenance or 
removal, in which case the dominant estate owner shall release the servient owner and its agents from any claims related to 
performance of such maintenance, including any claims under ORS 105.810-815 or similar statutes.  The servient estate owner 
shall be entitled to reimbursement for the cost of maintenance or removal and the dominant estate owner shall reimburse such 
costs within 60 days of receipt of a statement.  Failure to reimburse such costs in full within that time frame shall be a violation of 
the terms herein and servient estate holder shall be entitled to any collection costs or attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing the 
terms herein, including fees and costs on appeal.   

 
The use of this easement for landscape purposes shall not in any way interfere with the City’s use of the servient estate 

for public works or similar purposes.  The servient estate owner may enter the easement at anytime and for any purpose that does 
not interfere with the landscaping or purpose of this easement.  If the servient owner disturbs the easement landscaping while 
conducting inspection or repairs, such servient owner will promptly return the easement landscaping to its condition prior to 
disturbance. 

 
In the event that a public body through eminent domain acquires the easement property, the dominant estate shall claim 

no compensation, but all compensation shall accrue to the servient estate. 
 
No hazardous chemicals shall be stored, applied or used on the easement property, except readily available consumer 

herbicides and pesticides. Use of such herbicides and pesticides shall be according to the label and the dominant estate shall be 
responsible for any damages resulting from the use of such chemicals. 

 
This easement has been granted in exchange for good and valuable consideration including $5.00. 
 
The witness whereof, the parties have executed this instrument on the date stated above. Any signature on behalf of the 

City of Newberg is made with the authority of said city. 
 
BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON’S RIGHTS, 
IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007. THIS INSTRUMENT 
DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 
BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE 
APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY 
ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE 
ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF 
NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON 
LAWS 2007. 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 58 

harrisj
Textbox
EXHIBIT "B"



 

 
2 LANDSCAPE EASEMENT 
 
   

 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this landscape easement on this          day of                 , _____. 
 
 
 

      
Steve Rhodes 
City Manager, Pro Tem 
City of Newberg 

 
STATE OF OREGON   ) 

  ) s.s. 
County of Yamhill         ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, ____, by Steve Rhodes. 
 
                                                                                 
 
     
Notary Public for Oregon 
My Commission expires:                                          
 
        
ACCEPTED:       APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
             
Stan Bunn       Truman A. Stone, City Attorney  
 
         
Dated:         Dated:      
 

5/16/16
PAGE 59 



5/16/16
PAGE 60 



5/16/16
PAGE 61 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3301 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  _XX_   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2016-3301 

SUBJECT:  Approving Adjusted Solid Waste and 
Recycling Services Rates for Waste Management 
effective July 1, 2016 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:      Matt Zook, Finance Director 
Dept.:         Finance 
File No.:  

HEARING TYPE:  LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL  ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3301 approving adjusted garbage and recycling 
service rates for Waste Management (WM) effective July 1, 2016. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   The City has an exclusive franchise with WM for the hauling of garbage 
and the collection of recyclable materials within the City.  The franchise agreement gives the City the 
right to regulate and fix rates. 
 
Resolution No. 1999-2160 adopted January 19, 1999 requiring the garbage rates be reviewed every two 
(2) years. 
 History of approved rates 
 July 1999  – 10.62% 
 July 2001  – 18.50% 
 July 2003  –  0.00% 
 July 2007  –  3.50% 
 July 2009  –  4.23% 
 July 2011  –  5.47% 
 Aug 2013  –  4.70% 
 Sept 2014 –    2.50% (in conjunction with City franchise fee increase from 3% to 5%) 
 
WM is requesting a 3.34% general rate increase effective July 1, 2016 to help with a system conversion 
of their commercial collection system.  The proposed garbage and recycling rates and other operating data 
for the Council’s review and consideration is attached as Exhibit “A” to the resolution.  Per the franchise 
agreement, Council will give consideration to all relevant factors, including current and projected revenue, 
the cost of acquiring and replacing equipment, the net cost of reuse and recycling, rates established by 
other jurisdictions for similar service under the same or similar service conditions, and other factors as the 
Council deems relevant. The conversion of the collection system falls under the criterion listed above as 
the cost of replacing equipment.  Further, the financial information provided in Exhibit “A” indicates a 
lower projected return on revenue for the next year of 6.99% before the requested fee increase.  WM will 
be present at meeting to answer any questions.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: If approved, garbage and recycling rates for customers within the City will increase 
by 3.34%.  For the typical residential customer, the monthly rate would increase from $20.81 to $21.50 
per month – an increase of $0.69 per month. Newberg assesses a franchise fee of 5% of gross annual 
revenue. The projected FY 2016/2017 City budget estimated franchise revenue of $168,662. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The City of Newberg strives to provide a clean and healthy 
environment for its citizens. WM has and continues to offer excellent garbage collection and recycling 
services to the community.  It is necessary to set collection rates that are adequate to ensure that these 

5/16/16
PAGE 62 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3301 PAGE 2 

services continue to be delivered and improved upon. The addition of curbside glass recycling will 
enhance customer service. 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 63 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3301 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3301 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING ADJUSTED GARBAGE AND 
RECYCLING SERVICE RATES FOR WASTE 
MANAGEMENT EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City has an exclusive franchise with Waste Management (WM) for the hauling of garbage as 

well as the collection of recyclable materials within the City, as approved by Ordinance 2012-
2756. Sections 6 & 7 of the Franchise Agreement between WM and the City give the City the right 
to regulate and fix rates. An excerpt from the Franchise Agreement outlining Authorized Rates is 
hereby attached as Exhibit “B” and by this reference incorporated. 
 

2. The City finds that WM has established justification for a rate increase by the following critieria: 
a. The cost of acquiring and replacing equipment, specifically the conversion of the 

collection system; 
b. Current and projected revenue, specifically that projected net revenue will decrease in 

without the proposed rate increase;  
 

3. The City finds that it is appropriate to adjust rates as proposed by WM by 3.34%. 
 

4. Franchisee is required to provide a minimum of a 30-day notice to its customers of revisions to the 
service rate schedule.  This fee increase would not take effect until after July 1, 2016. 
 

5. The public has been given the opportunity to comment on the proposed rate increase as required 
by ORS 294.160. 
 

6. Rates will be reviewed in even-numbered years going forward. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The garbage and recycling rates for individual services proposed by Waste Management (WM) is 

a 3.34% general rate increase as shown in Exhibit “A” is hereby attached and by this reference 
incorporated. 

 
2. The 3.34% general rate increase may take effect on July 1, 2016, or such date after customers are 

provided a minimum of 30 days advance notice of the rate increase. 
 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 
 
_______________________________ 
Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 64 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3301 PAGE 2 

ATTEST by the Mayor this                day of May, 2016. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 65 



Exhibit "A"
to Resolution No.2016-3301

5/16/16
PAGE 66 



5/16/16
PAGE 67 



5/16/16
PAGE 68 



5/16/16
PAGE 69 



5/16/16
PAGE 70 



5/16/16
PAGE 71 



5/16/16
PAGE 72 



Exhibit "B"
to Resolution No.2016-3301

5/16/16
PAGE 73 



5/16/16
PAGE 74 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance  XX  Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 

No. No. 2016-2801 No. 

SUBJECT: An ordinance amending the Newberg 

development code regarding recreational marijuana 

wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates 

producers and retailers; and declaring an 

emergency. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.: DCA-16-001 

HEARING TYPE: LEGISLATIVE QUASI-JUDICIAL NOT APPLICABLE 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-2801 amending the Newberg Development Code for recreational marijuana 

wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

A. SUMMARY:  The proposed Development Code amendments do the following: 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Laboratories as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-

2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, SD/E, M-

1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Research Certificates as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-

1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, 

SD/E, M-1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Retailers as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-

2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC and SD/H with footnotes for a 1,000 foot buffer 

from parks and schools, 1,000 foot separation between marijuana retailers and marijuana retailers 

to marijuana dispensaries, and operating hours limited to the hours between 9 AM and 8 PM.   

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a conditional use in C-2 with footnotes allowed 

indoors only and 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a permitted use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-1/SP, 

SD/E and II with footnote 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

in the Stream Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers and Retailers in the Civic Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

5/16/16
PAGE 75 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 2 

in the Bypass Interchange Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories and Research Certificates in the 

Interim Industrial Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Retailers in the Interim Industrial Overlay. 

B. BACKGROUND: The Oregon voters passed Measure 91 on recreational marijuana in November 

2014. The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the 

Oregon Medical Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill 

covering recreational marijuana and modifications to the medical marijuana program. HB 2014 was 

enacted addressing taxes on the sale of recreational marijuana, SB 460 related to limited retail sales 

of marijuana from medical marijuana dispensaries and SB 844 enacted a task force on researching 

the medical and public health properties of cannabis. In addition to the enacting of the four bills the 

Oregon Liquor Control Commission adopted temporary Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s) on 

October 22, 2015 that were subsequently modified on November 20, 2015 for recreational marijuana 

under Chapter 845, Division 25.    

 

On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on medical 

and recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At the City Council Business Session on September 

8th they established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of Councilors Rourke, 

Bacon and McKinney along with non-voting member Mayor Andrews. The City Council also 

directed staff to bring back an ordinance with a ban of the sale of recreational marijuana from 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries. 

 

On September 21, 2015 the Newberg City Council passed Ordinance No. 2015-2787 declaring a ban 

on the early sale of recreational marijuana by marijuana dispensaries and declaring an emergency. 

 

At the January 12, 2016 Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) meeting the Subcommittee passed 

a motion 3-0  directing staff to create a Request for Council Action (RCA) to initiate a Development 

Code amendment for recreational marijuana wholesale, laboratory, research certificate and retail 

regulations to bring forward for Council consideration on February 1. The City Council adopted 

Resolution No. 2015-3253 on February 1, 2016 initiating the Development Code amendment process 

(Attachment 1). 

 

The Subcommittee met again on February 4, 2016 and developed recommendations on recreational 

marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers.   

 

C. PROCESS:  A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows the 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.060.  Important dates related to this 

application are as follows: 

1. 2/1/16: The Newberg City Council initiated the Development Code 

amendment. 

2. 2/4/16: The City Council Marijuana Subcommittee met and developed 

recommendations to the Planning Commission. 

3. 4/14/16: After proper notice, the Planning Commission held a legislative 

5/16/16
PAGE 76 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 3 

hearing to consider the item, took public comment, and approved 

Resolution 2016-314. 

4. 5/16/16: After proper notice, the City Council held a legislative hearing to 

consider the item. 

 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received two comments on the 

application. The comments indicate recreational marijuana sales should be allowed in Newberg and a 

request to consider a 1,000 foot separation between retail operations (Attachment 2). If the city 

receives additional written comments by the comment deadline, Planning staff will forward them to 

the City Council. 

 

E. ANALYSIS:   

 

PLACE 
 

Oregon Revised Statutes 475B.015 provides the following definitions: 

 

(24)(a) “Premises” or “licensed premises” includes the following areas of a location 

licensed under ORS 475B.070, 475B.090, 475B.100 or 475B.110: 

(A) All public and private enclosed areas at the location that are used in the business 

operated at the location, including offices, kitchens, rest rooms and storerooms; 

(B) All areas outside a building that the commission has specifically licensed for the 

production, processing, wholesale sale or retail sale of marijuana items; and 

(C) For a location that the commission has specifically licensed for the production of 

marijuana outside a building, the entire lot or parcel, as defined in ORS 92.010, that the 

licensee owns, leases or has a right to occupy. 

(b) “Premises” or “licensed premises” does not include a primary residence. 

 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 provides the following definitions: 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 

 ALL MARIJUANA LICENSES 

 

845-025-1015 

Definitions 

 

(38) "Premises" or "licensed premises" includes the following areas of a location licensed 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015: 

(a) All public and private enclosed areas at the location that are used in the business 

operated at the location, including offices, kitchens, rest rooms and storerooms; 

(b) All areas outside a building that the Commission has specifically licensed for the 

production, processing, wholesale sale or retail sale of marijuana items; and 

(c) For a location that the Commission has specifically licensed for the production of 

marijuana outside a building, the entire lot or parcel, as defined in ORS 92.010, that the 

licensee owns, leases or has a right to occupy. 

5/16/16
PAGE 77 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 4 

(d) “Premises” or “licensed premises” does not include a primary residence. 

(39) “Primary Residence” means real property inhabited for the majority of a calendar 

year by an owner, renter or tenant, including manufactured homes and vehicles used as 

domiciles.  

 

HB 3400, Section 33 (ORS 475B.340) allows local governments to regulate the location of 

recreational marijuana wholesale and retail operations. The law reads: 

 

(Land Use) 

 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu 

of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

(a) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana producer licensed 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may produce marijuana; 

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processor licensed 

under section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may process marijuana; 

(c) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana wholesaler licensed 

under section 21, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana at wholesale; 

(d) Reasonable limitations on the hours during which a marijuana retailer licensed 

under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may operate; 

(e) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana retailer licensed 

under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana items; 

(f) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to a premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

and 

(g) Reasonable limitations on where a premises for which a license may be issued 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may be located. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of businesses 

located at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 

22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises are located in the area subject to 

the jurisdiction of the city or county, except that the governing body of a city or 

county may not adopt an ordinance that prohibits a premises for which a license has 

been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, from being located 

within a distance that is greater than 1,000 feet of another premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(3) Regulations adopted under this section must be consistent with city and county 

comprehensive plans and zoning ordinances and applicable provisions of public 

health and 

safety laws. 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 78 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 5 

 

HB 3400, Section 15 (ORS 575B.100) allows local governments to regulate the location of 

recreational marijuana wholesale operations. The law reads: 
 

(License Holders) 
 

 

SECTION 15. Section 21, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 21. (1) The wholesale sale of marijuana items is subject to regulation by the Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission. 

(2) A marijuana wholesaler must have a wholesale license issued by the commission for 

the premises at which marijuana items are received, [kept,] stored[,] or delivered. To hold 

a wholesale license under this section, a marijuana wholesaler: 

(a) Must apply for a license in the manner described in section 28, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015; 

(b) Must, until January 1, 2020, provide proof that an applicant listed on an 

application submitted under section 28, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, has been a 

resident of this state for two or more years, and must provide proof that the 

applicant is 21 years of age or older; 

(c) May not be located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use; and 

(d) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the commission under 

subsection (3) of this section. 

(3) The commission shall adopt rules that: 

(a) Require a marijuana wholesaler to annually renew a license issued under this 

section; 

(b) Establish application, licensure and renewal of licensure fees for marijuana 

wholesalers; 

(c) Require marijuana items received, stored or delivered by a marijuana wholesaler 

to be tested in accordance with section 92 of this 2015 Act; and 

(d) Require a marijuana wholesaler to meet any public health and safety standards 

and industry best practices established by the commission by rule. 

(4) Fees adopted under subsection (3)(b) of this section: 

(a) May not exceed the cost of administering sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, with respect to marijuana wholesalers; and 

(b) Shall be deposited in the Marijuana Control and Regulation Fund established 

under section 32 of this 2015 Act. 
 

HB 3400, Sections 16 and 17 (ORS 475B.110) allows local governments to regulate the location 

of recreational marijuana retail operations. The law reads: 
 

 

SECTION 16. Section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 22. (1) The retail sale of marijuana items is subject to regulation by the Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission. 

(2) A marijuana retailer must have a retail license issued by the commission for the 

premises at which marijuana items are sold. To hold a retail license under this section, 

a marijuana retailer: 

(a) Must apply for a license in the manner described in section 28, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015; 

5/16/16
PAGE 79 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 6 

(b) Must, until January 1, 2020, provide proof that an applicant listed on an 

application submitted under section 28, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, has been a 

resident of this state for two or more years, and must provide proof that the 

applicant is 21 years of age or older; 

(c) May not be located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use; 

(d) May not be located within 1,000 feet of: 

(A) A public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory 

under ORS 339.020; or 

(B) A private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as 

described in ORS 339.030 (1)(a); and 

(e) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the commission under 

subsection (3) of this section. 

(3) The commission shall adopt rules that: 

(a) Require a marijuana retailer to annually renew a license issued under this 

section; 

(b) Establish application, licensure and renewal of licensure fees for marijuana 

retailers; 

(c) Require marijuana items sold by a marijuana retailer to be tested in accordance 

with section 92 of this 2015 Act; and 

(d) Require a marijuana retailer to meet any public health and safety standards and 

industry best practices established by the commission by rule. 

(4) Fees adopted under subsection (3)(b) of this section: 

(a) May not exceed the cost of administering sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, with respect to marijuana retailers; and 

(b) Shall be deposited in the Marijuana Control and Regulation Fund established 

under section 32 of this 2015 Act. 

 

SECTION 17. If a school described in section 22 (2)(d), chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, that has not previously been attended by children is established within 1,000 

feet of a premises for which a license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015, the marijuana retailer located at that premises may remain at 

that location unless the Oregon Liquor Control Commission revokes the license of 

the marijuana retailer under section 30, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

 

HB 3400, Section 34 (ORS 475B.370 and ORS 475B.063) establishes a requirement for a land 

use compatibility statement for recreational marijuana wholesale and retail uses. The law reads: 
 

SECTION 34. (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, marijuana is: 

(a) A crop for the purposes of “farm use” as defined in ORS 215.203; 

(b) A crop for purposes of a “farm” and “farming practice,” both as defined in ORS 

30.930; 

(c) A product of farm use as described in ORS 308A.062; and 

(d) The product of an agricultural activity for purposes of ORS 568.909. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS chapters 195, 196, 197 and 215, the following are not 

permitted uses on land designated for exclusive farm use: 

(a) A new dwelling used in conjunction with a marijuana crop; 

(b) A farm stand, as described in ORS 215.213 (1)(r) or 215.283 (1)(o), used in 

conjunction with a marijuana crop; and 

(c) A commercial activity, as described in ORS 215.213 (2)(c) or 215.283 (2)(a), 

5/16/16
PAGE 80 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 7 

carried on in conjunction with a marijuana crop. 

(3) A county may allow the production of marijuana as a farm use on land zoned for 

farm or forest use in the same manner as the production of marijuana is allowed in 

exclusive farm use zones under this section and ORS 215.213 and 215.283. 

(4)(a) Prior to the issuance of a license under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015, the Oregon Liquor Control Commission shall request a land use 

compatibility statement from the city or county that authorizes the land use. The 

land use compatibility statement must demonstrate that the requested license is for a 

land use that is allowable as a permitted or conditional use within the given zoning 

designation where the land is located. The commission may not issue a license if the 

land use compatibility statement shows that the proposed land use is prohibited in 

the applicable zone. 

(b) A city or county that receives a request for a land use compatibility statement 

under this subsection must act on that request within 21 days of: 

(A) Receipt of the request, if the land use is allowable as an outright permitted use; 

or 

(B) Final local permit approval, if the land use is allowable as a conditional use. 

(c) A city or county action concerning a land use compatibility statement under this 

subsection is not a land use decision for purposes of ORS chapter 195, 196, 197 or 

215. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes a requirement for a land use compatibility 

statement for recreational marijuana wholesale and retail uses. The rule reads: 
 

 

845-025-1090 

Application Review 

(1) Once the Commission has determined that an application is complete it must review 

the application to determine compliance with chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, chapter 614, 

Oregon Laws 2015, and these rules.  

(2) The Commission:  

(a) Must, prior to acting on an application, request a land use compatibility statement 

from the city or county that authorizes land use in the city or county in which the 

applicant’s proposed premises is located or request verification that a land use 

compatibility statement submitted by an applicant is valid and accurate  

(b) May, in its discretion, prior to acting on an application: 

(A) Contact any applicant or individual with a financial interest and request additional 

documentation or information; and  

(B) Verify any information submitted by the applicant.  

(3) The Commission must inspect the proposed premises prior to issuing a license.  

(4) If during an inspection the Commission determines the applicant is not in compliance 

with these rules, the applicant will be provided with a notice of the failed inspection and 

the requirements that have not been met.  

(a) An applicant that fails an inspection will have 15 calendar days from the date the 

notice was sent to submit a written response that demonstrates the deficiencies have been 

corrected.  

(b) An applicant may request in writing one extension of the 15-day time limit in 

subsection (a) of this section, not to exceed 30 days. 

(5) If an applicant does not submit a timely plan of correction or if the plan of correction 

5/16/16
PAGE 81 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 8 

does not correct the deficiencies in a manner that would bring the applicant into 

compliance, the Commission may deny the application.  

(6) If the plan of correction appears, on its face, to correct the deficiencies, the 

Commission will schedule another inspection.  

(7) If an applicant fails a second inspection, the Commission may deny the application 

unless the applicant shows good cause for the Commission to perform additional 

inspections. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes requirements and limitations for denial of a 

license by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission for wholesale and retail recreational 

marijuana uses. The rule reads: 
 

845-025-1115 

Denial of Application  

(1) The Commission must deny an initial or renewal application if:  

(a) An applicant is under the age of 21 or, until January 1, 2020, has not been a resident 

or Oregon for at least two years. If the Commission determines that an applicant is a non-

resident the Commission will hold that application under review until 30 days after the 

2016 Oregon Legislature adjourns.  

(b) The applicant’s land use compatibility statement shows that the proposed land use is 

prohibited in the applicable zone.  

(c) The proposed licensed premises is located:  

(A) On federal property.  

(B) At the same physical location or address as a:  

(i) Medical marijuana grow site registered under ORS 475.304, unless the grow site is 

also licensed under section 116, chapter 614, Oregon laws 2015;  

(ii) Medical marijuana processing site registered under section 85, chapter 614, Oregon 

Laws 2015; or 

(iii) Medical marijuana dispensary registered under ORS 475.314.  

(C) At the same physical location or address as a liquor licensee licensed under ORS 

chapter 471 or as a retail liquor agent appointed by the Commission.  

(d) The proposed licensed premises of a producer applicant is:  

(A) On public land; or  

(B) On the same tax lot or parcel as another producer licensee under common ownership. 

(e) The proposed licensed premises of a processor who has applied for an endorsement to 

process extracts is located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(f) The proposed licensed premises of a retail applicant is located:  

(A) Within 1,000 feet of: 

(i) A public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under 

ORS 339.020; or (ii) A private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching 

children as described in ORS 339.030.  

(B) In an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(g) The proposed licensed premises of a wholesaler applicant is in an area zoned 

exclusively for residential use. 

(h) A city or county has prohibited the license type for which the applicant is applying, in 

accordance with sections 133 or 134, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015. 

5/16/16
PAGE 82 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 9 

(2) The Commission may deny an initial or renewal application, unless the applicant 

shows good cause to overcome the denial criteria, if it has reasonable cause to believe 

that:  

(a) The applicant:  

(A) Is in the habit of using alcoholic beverages, habit-forming drugs, marijuana, or 

controlled substances to excess.  

(B) Has made false statements to the Commission.  

(C) Is incompetent or physically unable to carry on the management of the establishment 

proposed to be licensed.  

(D) Is not of good repute and moral character.  

(E) Does not have a good record of compliance with sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, or these rules, prior to or after licensure 

including but not limited to:  

(i) The giving away of marijuana items as a prize, premium or consideration for a lottery, 

contest, game of chance or skill, or competition of any kind, in violation of section 49, 

chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015; (ii) Providing marijuana items to an individual without 

checking that the individual is 21 or older; 

(iii) Unlicensed transfer of marijuana items for financial consideration; or (iv) Violations 

of local ordinances adopted under section 33, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, pending or 

adjudicated by the local government that adopted the ordinance.  

(F) Is not possessed of or has not demonstrated financial responsibility sufficient to 

adequately meet the requirements of the business proposed to be licensed.  

(G) Is unable to understand the laws of this state relating to marijuana or these rules, 

including but not limited to ORS 475.300 to 475.346 and sections 91 to 99, chapter 614, 

Oregon Laws 2015. Inability to understand laws and rules of this state related to 

marijuana may be demonstrated by violations documented by the Oregon Health 

Authority. 

(b) Any individual listed on the application has been convicted of violating a general or 

local law of this state or another state, or of violating a federal law, if the conviction is 

substantially related to the fitness and ability of the applicant to lawfully carry out 

activities under the license, except as specified in Section 29(3), chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015.  

(c) Any applicant is not the legitimate owner of the business proposed to be licensed, or 

other persons have an ownership interest in the business have not been disclosed to the 

Commission.  

(3) The Commission may refuse to issue a license to any license applicant or refuse to 

renew the license of any licensee when conditions exist in relation to any person having a 

financial interest in the business or in the place of business which would constitute 

grounds for refusing to issue a license or for revocation or suspension of a license if such 

person were the license applicant or licensee. However, in cases where the financial 

interest is held by a corporation, only the officers and directors of the corporation, any 

individual or combination of individuals who own a controlling financial interest in the 

business shall be considered persons having a financial interest within the meaning of this 

subsection. 

(4) The Commission will not deny an application under subsections (1) (c) (B) of this rule 

if the applicant surrenders the registration issued by the Authority prior to being issued an 

OLCC license.  

5/16/16
PAGE 83 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 10 

(5) If the Commission denies an application because an applicant submitted false or 

misleading information to the Commission, the Commission may prohibit the applicant 

from re-applying for five years.  

(6) A notice of denial must be issued in accordance with ORS 183. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes restrictions and requirements for wholesale 

and retail recreational marijuana uses. The rule reads: 
 

845-025-1230 

Licensed Premises Restrictions and Requirements  

(1) A licensed premises may not be located:  

(a) On federal property; or  

(b) At the same physical location or address as a:  

(A) Medical marijuana grow site registered under ORS 475.304, unless the grow site is 

also licensed under section 116, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015;  

(B) Medical marijuana processing site registered under section 85, chapter 614, Oregon 

Laws 2015; or  

(C) Medical marijuana dispensary registered under ORS 475.314.  

(D) Liquor licensee licensed under ORS Chapter 471 or as a retail liquor agent appointed 

by the Commission.  

(2) The licensed premises of a producer applicant may not be on:  

(a) Public land; or  

(b) The same tax lot or parcel as another producer licensee under common ownership.  

(3) The licensed premises of a retailer may not be located:  

(a) Within 1,000 feet of:  

(A) A public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under 

ORS 339.020; or  

(B) A private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described 

in ORS 339.030.  

(b) In an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(4) The licensed premises of a processor who has an endorsement to process extracts may 

not be located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(5) The licensed premises of a processor, wholesaler, laboratory and retailer must be 

enclosed on all sides by permanent walls and doors.  

(6) A licensee may not permit:  

(a) Any minor on a licensed premises except as described in section (7) and (8) of this 

rule; or  

(b) On-site consumption of a marijuana item, alcohol, or other intoxicant by any 

individual, except that an employee who has a current registry identification card issued 

under ORS 475.309 may consume marijuana during his or her work shift on the licensed 

premises as necessary for his or her medical condition, if the employee is alone, in a 

closed room and not visible to others outside the room. An employee who consumes a 

marijuana item as permitted under this subsection may not be intoxicated while on duty.  

(7) Notwithstanding section (6)(a) of this rule, a minor, other than a licensee’s employee, 

who has a legitimate business purpose for being on the licensed premises, may be on the 

premises for a limited period of time in order to accomplish the legitimate business 

purpose. For example, a minor plumber may be on the premises in order to make a repair.  

5/16/16
PAGE 84 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 11 

(8) Notwithstanding section (6)(a) of this rule, a minor who resides on the tax lot or 

parcel where a marijuana producer is licensed may be present on those portions of a 

producer’s licensed that do not contain usable marijuana or cut and drying marijuana 

plants.  

(9) A licensee must clearly identify all limited access areas in accordance with OAR 845-

025- 1245. 

(10) A licensee must keep a daily log of all employees, contractors and license 

representatives who perform work on the licensed premises. All employees, contractors 

and licensee representatives must wear clothing or a badge issued by the licensee that 

easily identifies the individual as an employee, contractor or licensee representative.  

(11) The general public is not permitted in limited access areas on a licensed premises, 

except for the licensed premises of a retailer and as provided by section (14) of this rule. 

In addition to licensee representatives, the following individuals are permitted to be 

present in limited access areas on a licensed premises, subject to the requirements in 

section (12) of this rule:  

(a) Laboratory personnel, if the laboratory is licensed by the Commission;  

(b) A contractor, vendor or service provider authorized by a licensee representative to be 

on the licensed premises;  

(c) Another licensee or that licensee’s representative;  

(d) Up to seven invited guests per week subject to requirements of section (12) of this 

rule; or  

(e) Tour groups as permitted under section (14) of this rule.  

(12) Prior to entering a licensed premises all visitors permitted by section (11) of this rule 

must be documented and issued a visitor identification badge from a licensee 

representative that must remain visible while on the licensed premises. A visitor badge is 

not required for government officials. All visitors described in subsection (11) of this rule 

must be accompanied by a licensee representative at all times.  

(13) A licensee must maintain a log of all visitor activity. The log must contain the first 

and last name and date of birth of every visitor and the date they visited.  

(14) A marijuana producer or research certificate holder may offer tours of the licensed 

premises, including limited access areas, to the general public if the licensee submits a 

control plan in writing and the plan is approved by the Commission.  

(a) The plan must describe how conduct of the individuals on the tour will be monitored, 

how access to usable marijuana will be limited, and what steps the licensee will take to 

ensure that no minors are permitted on the licensed premises.  

(b) The Commission may withdraw approval of the control plan if the Commission finds 

there is poor compliance with the plan. Poor compliance may be indicated by, for 

example, individuals on the tour not being adequately supervised, an individual on the 

tour obtaining a marijuana item while on the tour, a minor being part of a tour, or the 

tours creating a public nuisance.  

(15) Nothing in this rule is intended to prevent or prohibit Commission employees or 

contractors, or other state or local government officials that have jurisdiction over some 

aspect of the licensed premises or licensee from being on the licensed premises.  

(16) A licensee may not sublet any portion of a licensed premises.  

(17) A licensed premises may receive marijuana items only from a marijuana producer, 

marijuana processor, or marijuana wholesaler for whom a premises has been licensed by 

the Commission.  

5/16/16
PAGE 85 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 12 

(18) A licensed wholesaler or retailer who sells or handles food, as that term is defined in 

ORS 616.695, or cannabinoid edibles must also be licensed by the Oregon Department of 

Agriculture under ORS 616.706. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes restrictions on the location of recreational 

marijuana retail uses. The rule reads: 
 

845-025-2840 

Retailer Premises  

(1) The licensed premises of a retailer:  

(a) May not be located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(b) May not be located within 1,000 feet of:  

(A) A public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under 

ORS 339.020; or  

(B) A private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described 

in ORS 339.030. 

(c) Must be enclosed on all sides by permanent walls and doors.  

(2) A retailer must post in a prominent place signs at every:  

(a) Point of sale that read:  

(A) “No Minors Permitted Anywhere on the Premises”; and  

(B) “No On-Site Consumption”.  

(b) Exit from the licensed premises that reads: “Marijuana or Marijuana Infused Products 

May Not Be Consumed In Public”.  

(3) A retailer must designate a consumer sales area on the licensed premises where 

consumers are permitted. The area shall include the portion of the premises where 

marijuana items are displayed for sale to the consumer and sold and may include other 

contiguous areas such as a lobby or a restroom. The consumer sales area is the sole area 

of the licensed premises where consumers are permitted.  

(4) All inventory must be stored on the licensed premises.  

(5) For purposes of determining the distance between a retailer and a school referenced in 

subsection (1)(b) of this rule, "within 1,000 feet" means a straight line measurement in a 

radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on 

the boundary line of the real property comprising a school to the closest point of the 

licensed premises of a retailer. If any portion of the licensed premises is within 1,000 feet 

of a school as described subsection (1)(b) of this rule an applicant will not be licensed. 
 

 

HB 3400 and Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 have no specific provisions for the 

location of testing laboratories and research certificate facilities. Research certificates can be 

issued to qualifying private and public researchers. The City Council may want to consider 

limiting these two uses. One option is to allow testing laboratories as a permitted use in industrial 

districts. For research certificates an option is to allow the activity as a permitted use in industrial 

districts. The City Council may also want to consider if research certificate activities should be 

allowed in the Institutional District. The rules for testing laboratories and research certificates 

reads as follows: 

 
 

MARIJUANA TESTING LABORATORIES 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 86 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 13 

845-025-5000 

Laboratory License Privileges  

A licensed marijuana testing laboratory may: 

(1) Obtain samples of marijuana items from licensees for purposes of performing testing 

as provided in these rules and OAR 333-007-0300 to 333-007-0490;  

(2) Transport and dispose of samples as provided in these rules; and  

(3) Perform testing on marijuana items in a manner consistent with the laboratory’s 

accreditation by the Oregon Health Authority, these rules and OAR 333-007-0300 to 333-

007-0490.  

 

845-025-5030 

Laboratory Licensing Requirements  

(1) General Requirements  

(a) A laboratory that intends to test marijuana items for producer, processor, wholesale or 

retail licensees must be licensed by the Commission.  

(b) An applicant for a license under this rule must comply with all applicable application 

requirements in OAR 845-025-1030 and pay the required application and license fees, 

except that a laboratory licensee is not subject to any residency requirements.  

(c) A laboratory application is subject to the same application review procedures as other 

applicants.  

(d) In addition to the denial criteria in OAR 845-025-1115, the Commission may refuse to 

issue a laboratory license for any violation of sections 91 to 99, chapter 614, Oregon 

Laws 2015, sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or these rules.  

(e) Laboratory application and license fees are established in OAR 845-025-1060.  

(2) Accreditation by the Oregon Health Authority  

(a) In addition to the requirements listed in section (1) of this rule, an applicant for a 

laboratory license must be accredited by the Authority with a scope of accreditation that 

includes the sampling and testing analysis required in OAR 333-007-0300 to 333-007-

0490 prior to exercising the licensed privileges in OAR 845-025-5000.  

(b) An applicant for a license under this rule may apply for licensure prior to receiving 

accreditation, but the Commission will not issue a license until proof of accreditation is 

received. (c) The Commission may make efforts to verify or check on an applicant’s 

accreditation status during the licensing process, but an applicant bears the burden of 

taking all steps needed to secure accreditation and present proof of accreditation to the 

Commission.  

(d) In addition to the denial criteria in OAR 845-025-1115, the Commission may consider 

an application incomplete if the applicant does not obtain accreditation from the 

Authority within six months of applying for a license. The Commission shall give an 

applicant an opportunity to be heard if an application is declared incomplete under this 

section, but an applicant is not entitled to a contested case proceeding under ORS chapter 

183. An applicant whose application is declared incomplete may reapply at any time.  

(e) A licensed laboratory must maintain accreditation by the Authority at all times while 

licensed by the Commission. If a laboratory’s accreditation lapses, is canceled or is 

suspended at any time for any reason while licensed by the Commission, the laboratory 

may not engage in any activities permitted under the license until accreditation is 

reinstated.  

(f) Exercising license privileges while accreditation is suspended or canceled is a 

Category I violation and could result in license cancellation.  

5/16/16
PAGE 87 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 14 

(3) Renewal. 

(a) A laboratory must renew its license annually and pay the required renewal fees in 

accordance with OAR 845-025-1190.  

(b) A laboratory renewal application may be denied for any violation of sections 91 to 99, 

chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or these 

rules.  

 

845-025-5045 

Laboratory Tracking and Reporting  

(1) A laboratory licensee is required to utilize CTS and follow all requirements 

established by OAR 845-025-7500 to OAR 845-025-7590. 

 (2) A laboratory licensee is responsible for tracking and entering the following 

information into CTS:  

(a) Receipt of samples for testing, including:  

(A) Size of the sample;  

(B) Name of licensee from whom the sample was obtained;  

(C) Date the sample was collected; and  

(D) UID tag information associated with the harvest or process lot from which the sample 

was obtained.  

(b) Tests performed on samples, including:  

(A) Date testing was performed;  

(B) What samples were tested for;  

(C) Name of laboratory responsible for testing; and  

(D) Results of all testing performed. (c) Disposition of any testing sample material.  

 

845-025-5060 

Laboratory Transportation and Waste Disposal  

(1) A laboratory licensee must follow all rules regarding transportation of marijuana items 

established in OAR 845-025-7700.  

(2) A laboratory licensee must follow all rules regarding disposal of samples from 

marijuana items established in OAR 845-025-7750.  

 

845-025-5075 

Laboratory Licensee Prohibited Conduct  

(1) In addition to the prohibitions set forth in OAR 845-025-8520, a laboratory licensee 

may not: (a) Perform any required marijuana testing using any testing methods or 

equipment not permitted under the laboratory’s accreditation through the Authority;  

(b) Perform any required marijuana testing for any licensed marijuana producer, 

processor, wholesaler or retailer in which the laboratory licensee has a financial interest; 

or 

(c) Engage in any activity that violates any provision of chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, 

chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, OAR 333-007-0300 through OAR 333-007-0490 or 

OAR 333, Division 64 as applicable or these rules.  

(2) The Commission may suspend or cancel a laboratory license for any violation of 

sections 91 to 99, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, or these rules. The licensee has a right 

to a hearing under the procedures of ORS chapter 183; OAR chapter 137, division 003; 

and OAR chapter 845, division 003. 

(2) A violation of this rule is a Category I violation and could result in license revocation. 
 

5/16/16
PAGE 88 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 15 

 

RESEARCH CERTIFICATE 

 

845-025-5300 

Application for Marijuana Research Certificate  

(1) The Commission shall issue Marijuana Research Certificates to qualifying public and 

private researchers who present research proposals that demonstrate:  

(a) The proposed research would benefit the state’s cannabis industry, medical research or 

public health and safety; and  

(b) The proposed operation and methodology complies with all applicable laws and 

administrative rules governing marijuana licensees and licensee representatives.  

(2) The process for applying for, receiving and renewing a certificate shall be the same as 

the process for applying for, receiving and renewing a marijuana license under OAR 845-

025-1030 to 845-025-1115 except that an applicant for a Marijuana Research Certificate 

is not subject to the residency requirements in OAR 845-025-1045(2)(b).  

(3) In addition to the application requirements in OAR-025-1030 the applicant must also 

provide: (a) A clear description of the research proposal;  

(b) A description of the researchers' expertise in the scientific substance and methods of 

the proposed research;  

(c) An explanation of the scientific merit of the research plan, including a clear statement 

of the overall benefit of the applicant’s proposed research to Oregon’s cannabis industry, 

medical research, or to public health and safety;  

(d) Descriptions of key personnel, including clinicians, scientists, or epidemiologists and 

support personnel who would be involved in the research, demonstrating they are 

adequately trained to conduct this research;  

(e) A clear statement of the applicant’s access to funding and the estimated cost of the 

proposed research;  

(f) A disclosure of any specific conflicts of interest that the researcher or other key 

personnel have regarding the research proposal;  

(g) A description of the research methods demonstrating an unbiased approach to the 

proposed research; and  

(h) If the applicant intends to research the use of pesticides, an experimental use permit 

issued by Oregon Department of Agriculture pursuant to OAR 603-057-0160.  

(4) Research certificates will be granted for up to a three-year term. 

(5) The Commission may request that the research certificate holder submit information 

and fingerprints required for a criminal background check at any time within the research 

certificate term.  

(6) A certificate holder may, in writing, request that the Commission waive one or more 

of these rules. The request must include the following information:  

(a) The specific rule and subsection of a rule that is requested to be waived;  

(b) The reason for the waiver;  

(c) A description of an alternative safeguard the licensee can put in place in lieu of the 

requirement that is the subject of the waiver, or why such a safeguard is not necessary; 

and  

(d) An explanation of how and why the alternative safeguard or waiver of the rule 

protects public health and safety, prevents diversion of marijuana, and provides for 

accountability.  

(7) The Commission may, in its discretion, and on a case-by-case basis, grant the waiver 

in whole or in part if it finds:  

5/16/16
PAGE 89 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 16 

(a) The reason the certificate holder is requesting the waiver is because another state or 

local law prohibits compliance; or  

(b) The certificate holder cannot comply with the particular rule, for reasons beyond the 

certificate holder’s control or compliance with the rule is cost prohibitive; or  

(c) Because of the nature of the research, the Commissions finds that compliance with a 

particular rule is not necessary and that even with the waiver public health and safety can 

be protected, there is no increased opportunity for diversion of marijuana, and the 

certificate holder remains accountable.  

(8) The Commission must notify the certificate holder in writing whether the request has 

been approved. If the request is approved the notice must specifically describe any 

alternate safeguards that are required and, if the waiver is time limited, must state the 

time period the waiver is in effect.  

(9) The Commission may withdraw approval of the waiver at any time upon a finding that 

the previously approved waiver is not protecting public health and safety or the research 

certificate holder has other issues with compliance. If the Commission withdraws its 

approval of the waiver the certificate holder will be given a reasonable period of time to 

come into compliance with the requirement that was waived.  

 

845-025-5350 

Marijuana Research Certificate Privileges and Prohibitions  

(1) A certificate holder may receive marijuana items from a licensee or a registrant under 

ORS 475.300 to 475.346.  

(2) A certificate holder may not sell or otherwise transfer marijuana items to any other 

person except when disposing of waste pursuant to OAR 845-025-7750, or transferring to 

another certificate holder.  

(3) A certificate holder may not conduct any human subject research related to marijuana 

unless the certificate holder has received approval from an institutional review board that 

has adopted the Common Rule, 45 CFR Part 46.  

(4) All administrative rules adopted by Commission for the purpose of administering and 

enforcing chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015; and any rules 

adopted thereunder with respect to licensees and licensee representatives apply to 

certificate holders except for those which are inconsistent with this rule.  
 

 The Newberg Municipal Code states the following regarding retail, wholesale and warehouse: 

15.05.030 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this title, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

“Retail sales – general category” means a category of uses under Chapter 15.303 NMC 

that sell or rent goods to the general public. Items are sold indoors, or, if outdoors, are 

limited to small items that do not require machinery to load to customers. Most items for 

sale are stored on or picked up from the site. Operators may be commercial or nonprofit 

entities. 

“Wholesale and industry sales category” means a category of uses under 

Chapter 15.303 NMC that sell goods or merchandise to retailers, to industrial, 

5/16/16
PAGE 90 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 17 

commercial, institutional, or other professional business users, or to other wholesalers 

and related subordinated services. Items are only occasionally sold directly to the general 

public. 

“Warehouse, storage and distribution category” means a category of uses under 

Chapter 15.303 NMC that involve the storage or movement of goods for themselves or 

other firms. Goods are generally delivered to other firms or the final consumer, except for 

some will-call pickups. It includes data centers that store and distribute electronic data. 

There is little on-site sales activity with the customer present. 

Use Categories 

15.303.421 Retail sales – General category. 

A. Characteristics. General retail sales uses sell or rent goods to the general public. Items 

are sold indoors, or, if outdoors, are limited to small items that do not require machinery 

to load to customers. Most items for sale are stored on or picked up from the site. 

Operators may be commercial or nonprofit entities. 

15.303.503 Wholesale and industry sales category. 

A. Characteristics. Wholesale sales uses sell goods or merchandise to retailers, to 

industrial, commercial, institutional, or other professional business users, or to other 

wholesalers and related subordinated services. Items are only occasionally sold directly to 

the general public. 

15.303.504 Warehouse, storage and distribution category. 

A. Characteristics. Warehouse. Storage and distribution uses involve the storage, or 

movement of goods for themselves or other firms. Goods are generally delivered to other 

firms or the final consumer, except for some will-call pickups. It includes data centers 

that store and distribute electronic data. There is little on-site sales activity with the 

customer present. 

 

 
USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C CF I 

AR AI Notes and 

Special 

Use Standards 

400 COMMERCIAL 

USES 

                   

 Retail sales - 

General 

     P 

(20) 

P P 

(15) 

(21) 

P  P 

(23) 

        

500 INDUSTRIAL 

USES 

                   

5/16/16
PAGE 91 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 18 

 
USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C CF I 

AR AI Notes and 

Special 

Use Standards 

 Wholesale and 

industry sales 

      C 

(31) 

  P 

(31) 

P P P     P(33)  

 Warehouse, storage 

and distribution 

         P 

(32) 

P P P     P (33)  

 

 Key: 

  

 P: Permitted use 

 S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit 

 C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit  

 X: Prohibited use 

 (#): See notes for limitations 

 
 Notes. 

 (15) Facility over 40,000 square feet gross floor area requires a conditional use permit. 

(20) Businesses in the C-1 zone that have hours of operation between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. require a conditional use permit. 

(21) Drive-up service windows accessory to an existing business on the site with walk-in customer service, such as a drive-up bank window, 

are allowed only with a conditional use permit. Otherwise, drive-up service windows, except those in service on April 1, 2002, are prohibited. 

Changes in use will not be allowed. 

(23) Limited to secondhand stores. 

(31) Allowed indoors only. 

(32) Allowed indoors only. Outdoor use requires a conditional use permit. 

(33) Must be aviation-related. See Chapter 15.332 NMC. 

 

TIME 
 

HB 3400, Section 33 (ORS 475B.340) allows local governments to regulate the hours of 

operation (time) of marijuana retail operations. The law reads: 

 

(Land Use) 

 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

(a) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana producer licensed 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may produce marijuana; 

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processor licensed 

under section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may process marijuana; 

(c) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana wholesaler licensed 

under section 21, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana at wholesale; 

(d) Reasonable limitations on the hours during which a marijuana retailer licensed 

undersection 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may operate; 

(e) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana retailer licensed 

under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana items; 

5/16/16
PAGE 92 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 19 

(f) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to a premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

and 

(g) Reasonable limitations on where a premises for which a license may be issued 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may be located. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of businesses 

located at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 

22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises are located in the area subject to 

the jurisdiction of the city or county, except that the governing body of a city or 

county may not adopt an ordinance that prohibits a premises for which a license has 

been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, from being located 

within a distance that is greater than 1,000 feet of another premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(3) Regulations adopted under this section must be consistent with city and county 

comprehensive plans and zoning ordinances and applicable provisions of public 

health and safety laws. 
 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes hours of retail sales to consumers. The rule 

reads: 
 

845-025-2820 

Retailer Operational Requirements  

(1) A retailer may:  

(a) Only receive marijuana items from a producer, wholesaler, processor or laboratory;  

(b) Only sell marijuana items to a consumer from the licensed premises, unless sale is 

made pursuant to a bona fide order as described in OAR 845-025-2880;  

(c) Only sell up to the following amounts at any one time to a consumer within one day:  

(A) One ounce of usable marijuana;  

(B) 16 ounces of a cannabinoid product in solid form;  

(C) 72 ounces of a cannabinoid product in liquid form;  

(D) Five grams of cannabinoid extracts or concentrate, whether sold alone or contained in 

an inhalant delivery system;  

(E) Four immature marijuana plants; and  

(F) Ten marijuana seeds;  

(d) Refuse to sell marijuana items to a consumer; and  

(e) Only sell to consumers between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10 p.m. local time.  

(2) A retailer may not: 

(a) Provide free samples of a marijuana item to a consumer;  

(b) Sell or give away pressurized containers of butane or other materials that could be 

used in the home production of marijuana extracts;  

(c) Require a consumer to purchase other products or services as a condition of 

purchasing a marijuana item or receiving a discount on a marijuana item;  

(d) Sell a marijuana item for less than the cost of acquisition;  

(e) Provide coupons or offer discounts, except that uniform volume discounts are 

permitted;  

(f) Permit consumers to be present on the licensed premises or sell to a consumer between 

the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. local time the following day; or  

5/16/16
PAGE 93 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 20 

(g) Sell any product derived from industrial hemp, as that is defined in ORS 571.300, that 

is intended for human consumption, ingestion, or inhalation, unless it has been tested, 

labeled and packaged in accordance with these rules.  

(3) A retailer’s pricing on marijuana items must remain consistent during each day. 

(4) Prior to completing the sale of a marijuana item to a consumer, a retailer must verify 

that the consumer has a valid, unexpired government-issued photo identification and must 

verify that the consumer is 21 years of age or older by viewing the consumer’s:  

(a) Passport;  

(b) Driver license, whether issued in this state or by any other state, as long as the license 

has a picture of the person;  

(c) Identification card issued under ORS 807.400; 

(d) United States military identification card; or  

(e) Any other identification card issued by a state that bears a picture of the person, the 

name of the person, the person’s date of birth and a physical description of the person.  

(5) Marijuana items offered for sale by a retailer must be stored in such a manner that the 

items are only accessible to authorized representatives until such time as the final sale to 

the consumer is completed.  

(6) For purposes of this rule, "coupon" means any coupon, ticket, certificate token or any 

other material that a person may use to obtain a price reduction or rebate in connection 

with the acquisition or purchase of a marijuana item. 

 

There are no additional provisions in ORS or OAR’s regarding hours of operation for 

wholesalers, laboratories or research certificates. For laboratories and research facilities if they 

were permitted in industrial districts they could be considered to be similar to an industrial 

operation. The Development Code does not limit hours of operation for industrial type uses. For 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries Council adopted operational hours of 9 AM - 8 PM. 
 

 

MANNER 
 

HB 3400, Section 33 (ORS 475B.340) allows local governments to regulate the manner of 

recreational marijuana wholesale and retail uses. The law reads: 

 

(Land Use) 

 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

(a) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana producer licensed 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may produce marijuana; 

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processor licensed 

under section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may process marijuana; 

(c) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana wholesaler licensed 

5/16/16
PAGE 94 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 21 

under section 21, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana at wholesale; 

(d) Reasonable limitations on the hours during which a marijuana retailer licensed 

under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may operate; 

(e) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana retailer licensed 

under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may sell marijuana items; 

(f) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to a premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

and 

(g) Reasonable limitations on where a premises for which a license may be issued 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may be located. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of businesses 

located at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 

22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises are located in the area subject to 

the jurisdiction of the city or county, except that the governing body of a city or 

county may not adopt an ordinance that prohibits a premises for which a license has 

been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, from being located 

within a distance that is greater than 1,000 feet of another premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(3) Regulations adopted under this section must be consistent with city and county 

comprehensive plans and zoning ordinances and applicable provisions of public 

health and safety laws. 

 

HB 3400, Sections 19 and 20 (ORS 475B.215 and ORS 475B.218) establishes requirements for 

marijuana handlers in recreational marijuana retail operations. The law reads: 
 

(Marijuana Handlers) 

 

SECTION 19. (1) An individual who performs work for or on behalf of a person 

who holds a license under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, must have a 

valid permit issued by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission under section 20 of 

this 2015 Act if the individual participates in: 

(a) The possession, securing or selling of marijuana items at the premises for which 

the license has been issued; 

(b) The recording of the possession, securing or selling of marijuana items at the 

premises for which the license has been issued; or 

(c) The verification of any document described in section 16, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015. 

(2) A person who holds a license under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, 

must verify that an individual has a valid permit issued under section 20 of this 2015 

Act before allowing the individual to perform any work described in subsection (1) 

of this section at the premises for which the license has been issued. 

 

SECTION 20. (1) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission shall issue permits to 

qualified applicants to perform work described in section 19 of this 2015 Act. The 

commission shall adopt rules establishing: 

(a) The qualifications for performing work described in section 19 of this 2015 Act; 

(b) The term of a permit issued under this section; 

(c) Procedures for applying for and renewing a permit issued under this section; 

5/16/16
PAGE 95 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 22 

and 

(d) Reasonable application, issuance and renewal fees for a permit issued under this 

section. 

(2)(a) The commission may require an individual applying for a permit under this 

section to successfully complete a course, made available by or through the 

commission, through which the individual receives training on: 

(A) Checking identification; 

(B) Detecting intoxication; 

(C) Handling marijuana items; 

(D) The content of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, and rules adopted 

under sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; and 

(E) Any matter deemed necessary by the commission to protect the public health 

and safety. 

(b) The commission or other provider of the course may charge a reasonable fee for 

the course. 

(c) The commission may not require an individual to successfully complete the 

course more than once, except that: 

(A) As part of a final order suspending a permit issued under this section, the 

commission may require a permit holder to successfully complete the course as a 

condition of lifting the suspension; and 

(B) As part of a final order revoking a permit issued under this section, the 

commission shall require an individual to successfully complete the course prior to 

applying for a new permit. 

(3) The commission shall conduct a criminal records check under ORS 181.534 on 

an individual applying for a permit under this section. 

(4) Subject to the applicable provisions of ORS chapter 183, the commission may 

suspend, revoke or refuse to issue or renew a permit if the individual who is 

applying for or who holds the permit: 

(a) Is convicted of a felony, except that the commission may not consider a 

conviction for the manufacture or delivery of marijuana if the date of the conviction 

is two or more years before the date of the application or renewal; 

(b) Violates any provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or any 

rule adopted under sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; or 

(c) Makes a false statement to the commission. 

(5) A permit issued under this section is a personal privilege and permits work 

described under section 19 of this 2015 Act only for the individual who holds the 

permit. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes requirements for handlers in recreational 

marijuana retail operations. The rule reads: 
 

MARIJUANA HANDLER PERMITS 

 

845-025-5500 

Marijuana Handler Permit and Retailer Requirements  

(1) A marijuana handler permit is required for any individual who performs work for or 

on behalf of a marijuana retailer if the individual participates in:  

5/16/16
PAGE 96 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 23 

(a) The possession, securing or selling of marijuana items at the premises for which the 

license has been issued;  

(b) The recording of the possession, securing or selling of marijuana items at the premises 

for which the license has been issued;  

(c) The verification of any document described in section 16, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015; or  

(d) The direct supervision of a person described in subsections (a) to (c) of this section.  

(2) An individual who is required by section (1) of this rule to hold a marijuana handler 

permit must carry that permit on his or her person at all times when performing work on 

behalf of a marijuana retailer. 

(3) A person who holds a marijuana handler permit must notify the Commission in 

writing within 10 days of any conviction for a misdemeanor or felony. (4) A marijuana 

retailer must verify that an individual has a valid marijuana handler permit issued in 

accordance with OAR 845-025-5500 to 845-025-5590 before allowing the individual to 

perform any work at the licensed premises.  

 

845-025-5520 

Marijuana Handler Applications  

(1) In order to obtain a marijuana handler permit an individual must submit an application 

on a form prescribed by the Commission. The application must contain the applicant’s:  

(a) Name;  

(b) Mailing address;  

(c) Date of birth;  

(d) Signature; and  

(e) Response to conviction history questions.  

(2) In addition to the application an applicant must submit:  

(a) A copy of a driver's license or identification card issued by one of the fifty states in the 

United States of America or a passport; (b) The applicable fee as specified in OAR 845-

025-1060; and  

(c) Proof of having completed a marijuana handler education course and passed the 

examination. (3) If an application does not contain all the information requested or if the 

information and fee required in section (2) of this rule is not provided to the Commission, 

the application will be returned to the individual as incomplete, along with the fee. 

 (4) If an application is returned as incomplete, the individual may reapply at any time. 

 

845-025-5540 

Marijuana Handler Permit Denial Criteria  

(1) The Commission must deny an initial or renewal application if the applicant:  

(a) Is not 21 years of age or older; or  

(b) Has not completed the marijuana handler education course and passed the 

examination.  

(2) The Commission may deny a marijuana handler permit application, unless the 

applicant shows good cause to overcome the denial criteria, if the applicant:  

(a) Has been convicted of a felony, except for a felony described in section 20(4)(a), 

chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015;  

(b) Has violated a provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or these 

rules; or (c) Makes a false statement to the Commission.  

(3) If the Commission denies an application under subsection (2)(b) or (c) of this rule the 

individual may not reapply within two years of the date the Commission received the 

5/16/16
PAGE 97 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 24 

application. (4) A Notice of Denial must be issued by the Commission in accordance with 

ORS 183. Stat.  

 

845-025-5560 

Marijuana Handler Course Education and Examination Requirements  

(1) An individual must, prior to applying for a marijuana handler permit, complete an 

approved marijuana handler education course, pass the required examination, and pay the 

fee specified in OAR 845-025-1060.  

(2) An individual must score at least 70 percent on the marijuana handler course 

examination in order to pass.  

(a) An individual who does not pass the examination may retake the examination up to 

two times within 90 days of the date the individual took the course. If the individual fails 

to pass both retake examinations the individual must retake the handler education course.  

(3) An individual must take a marijuana handler education course at least every five years 

prior to applying for renewal of a marijuana handler permit.  

(4) The Commission may require additional education or training for permit holders at 

any time, with adequate notice to permit holders.  

 

845-025-5580 

Marijuana Handler Renewal Requirements  

(1) An individual must renew his or her marijuana handler permit every five years by 

submitting a renewal application, on a form prescribed by the Commission and the 

applicable fee specified in OAR 845-025-1060.  

(2) Renewal applications will be reviewed in accordance with OAR 845-025-5520 and 

845-025-5540. 

 

845-025-5590 

Suspension or Revocation  

(1) The Commission may suspend or cancel the permit of any marijuana handler if the 

handler:  

(a) Has been convicted of a felony, except for a felony described in section 20, chapter 

614, Oregon Laws 2015(4)(a);  

(b) Has violated a provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or these 

rules; or (c) Makes a material false statement to the Commission.  

(2) If an individual’s permit is canceled under sections (1)(b) or (c) of this rule the 

individual may not reapply within two years from the date a final order of revocation is 

issued.  

(3) A notice of suspension or revocation must be issued by the Commission in accordance 

with ORS 183. 
 

There are a variety of other operational requirements for recreational marijuana retail operations.  

These include Bonds and Liability Insurance (HB 3400, Sections 21 and 22); Tracking system for 

sales (HB 3400, Section 23 and OAR 845-025-7500 thru 845-025-7590); Identification requirements 

(HB 3400, Section 24); Protect Individuals Under the Age of 21 (HB 3400, Sections 25 - 28);  

Testing of Marijuana Products (HB 3400, Sections 91- 99 and OAR 845-025-5700 thru 845-025-

5740); Labeling and Packaging (HB 3400, Sections 100 – 112 and 845-025-7000 thru 845-025- 

760); Delivery (OAR 845-025-7700); Advertising (OAR 845-025-8000 thru 845-025-8080); Security 

and Alarm System (OAR 845-025-1400 thru 845-025-1460); Prizes and Giveaways (HB 3400, 

Section 49). 

5/16/16
PAGE 98 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 25 

 

Staff therefore proposes the following code amendments for Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, 

Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers:  

 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Laboratories as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-

2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, SD/E, M-

1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Research Certificates as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-

1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, 

SD/E, M-1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Retailers as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-2/LU, 

C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC and SD/H with footnotes for a 1,000 foot buffer from 

parks and schools, 1,000 foot separation between marijuana retailers and marijuana retailers to 

marijuana dispensaries, and operating hours limited to the hours between 9 AM and 8 PM.   

 Add Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a conditional use in C-2 with footnotes allowed 

indoors only and 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a permitted use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-1/SP, 

SD/E and II with footnote 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

in the Stream Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers and Retailers in the Civic Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

in the Bypass Interchange Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories and Research Certificates in the 

Interim Industrial Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Retailers in the Interim Industrial Overlay. 

Attachments 3 through 5 are maps depicting the 1,000 foot buffers from schools and parks 

recommended by the Subcommittee and Planning Commission. 

F. MARIJUANA SUBCOMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Subcommittee developed 

the following recommendations. 

Retail 

a. Not allow retail as a permitted use in residential districts R-1, R-2, R-3, R- 4, AR, RP, 

and all residential subdistricts. 

b. Allow retail as a permitted use in all commercial zones except Civic Corridor with a 

footnote regarding the 1,000 foot buffer from schools and parks as noted on the third map 

in the packet. 

5/16/16
PAGE 99 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 26 

c. Not allow retail in industrial districts and subdistricts. 

d. Not allow wholesale or retail in community facilities and institutional. 

e. Change the hours of operation for retail to 9 am to 8 pm. 

Wholesale 

a. Allow wholesale as a permitted use in all residential categories including the subdistricts 

with no product allowed on the premises. 

b. Allow wholesale as a conditional use in C-2 only with a footnote regarding indoor use 

only and new footnote regarding the 1,000 foot buffer from schools and parks. 

c. Not allow wholesale or retail in community facilities and institutional. 

d. Allow wholesale as a permitted use in all industrial districts and subdistricts, except 

Airport Industrial, with a footnote regarding the 1,000 foot buffer from schools and parks. 

e. Not allow retail or wholesale in the other subdistricts. 

Laboratories and Research Certificates 

a. Allow laboratories and research in all commercial districts and sub-districts, institutional 

districts, and all industrial districts and sub-districts, except AI. They are not allowed in 

all other districts, such as residential, community facilities, and other. 

 

 

G. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The Newberg Planning Commission held 

a public hearing on April 14, 2016, heard public testimony, and approved Resolution 2015-314, 

which recommends that the City Council: 

 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Laboratories as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-

2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, SD/E, M-

1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Research Certificates as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-

1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, SD/H, M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-4-C, 

SD/E, M-1/SP, II, AIO and CC. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Retailers as a permitted use in C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-2/LU, 

C-2/PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC and SD/H with footnotes for a 1,000 foot buffer from 

parks and schools, 1,000 foot separation between marijuana retailers and marijuana retailers to 

marijuana dispensaries, and operating hours limited to the hours between 9 AM and 8 PM.   

 Add Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a conditional use in C-2 with footnotes allowed 

indoors only and 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers as a permitted use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, M-1/SP, 

SD/E and II with footnote 1,000 foot buffer from parks and schools. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

5/16/16
PAGE 100 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 27 

in the Stream Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers and Retailers in the Civic Corridor Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

in the Bypass Interchange Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories and Research Certificates in the 

Interim Industrial Overlay. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Retailers in the Interim Industrial Overlay. 

The Planning Commission modified the recommendation from the Subcommittee by removing 

wholesalers as a permitted use in residential districts and subdistricts based on the Oregon Liquor 

Control Commission definition of a premises and understanding that licenses will not be issued 

where it is a primary residence. They also added a requirement for a 1,000 separation between 

retail marijuana businesses and a 1,000 foot separation between retail marijuana businesses and 

medical marijuana dispensaries. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The fiscal impact of allowing recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research 

certificates and retailers is unknown at this time, but it is anticipated the State would provide State shared 

revenue from taxes collected to the City. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): Recreational Marijuana 

wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers are legal activities under state law, and the 

city wishes to allow businesses the opportunity to operate in the city. Zoning restrictions on the uses are 

appropriate to address potential adverse impacts on adjacent uses. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance 2016-2801 with 

 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Development Code Text Amendment 

 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

1. City Council Resolution 2015-3253 

2. Public Comments 

3. 1,000 foot Schools Buffer Map 

4. 1,000 foot Parks Buffer Map 

5. 1,000 foot Schools/Parks Buffer Map 

6. Planning Commission Resolution No.  2016-314

5/16/16
PAGE 101 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE 

REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA WHOLESALERS, 

LABORATORIES. RESEARCH CERTIFICATES PRODUCERS AND 

RETAILERS; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. Measure 91 was approved by Oregon voters in November 2014 and House Bill 3400 was enacted by 

the Oregon Legislature in 2015 related to recreational marijuana. 

 

2. The Oregon Liquor Control Commission adopted temporary Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s) 

on October 22, 2015 that were subsequently modified on November 20, 2015 for recreational 

marijuana under Chapter 845, Division 25. 

 

3. The Newberg City Council established the Marijuana Subcommittee on September 8, 2015 to 

review and provide recommendations on local place, time and manner regulations for 

recreational marijuana. 

 

4. The Newberg City Council initiated a potential amendment to Newberg's Development Code 

regarding recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers on 

February 1, 2016, under City Council Resolution 2015-3253. 

 

5. The Marijuana Subcommittee met on February 4, 2016 and developed recommendations to the 

Planning Commission on recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and 

retailers. 

 

6. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on April 14, 2016 to 

consider the amendment for recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates 

and retailers.  The Commission considered testimony, deliberated, and found that adding 

regulations for recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers 

would be in the best interests of the city. The Planning Commission approved Resolution 2016-

314, which recommends that the City Council adopt the proposed amendments to the Newberg 

Development Code.   

 

7. After proper notice, the Newberg City Council held a hearing on May 16, 2016 to consider the 

proposed amendment.  The Council considered testimony and deliberated. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Council finds that adding regulations for recreational marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, 

research certificates and retailers would be in the best interests of the city. The Council adopts 

5/16/16
PAGE 102 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 2 

the amendments to the Newberg Development Code as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit "A" is 

hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 

incorporated. 

 

3. This ordinance being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, an emergency is declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon passage by the council and signature of the mayor. 

 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is of this ordinance is May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of  May, 2016, by the 

following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          
 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this  19th day of  May, 2016. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 103 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 3 

 

 

Exhibit “A” to Ordinance 2016-2801 

Development Code Amendments –File DCA-16-001 

Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, 

Laboratories, Research Certificates and 

Retailers 

 

Section 1.  The Newberg Development Code 15.05.030 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

Note:   Existing text is shown in regular font. 

 Added text is shown in double-underline 

 Deleted text is shown in strikethrough. 

 

 

 15.05.030 Definitions  

 

For the purpose of this title, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 

indicates or requires a different meaning: 

 

“Marijuana Laboratory” means a laboratory certified by the Oregon Health Authority under ORS 

438.605 to 438.620 and authorized to test marijuana items for purposes specified in these rules.  

 

“Marijuana Retailer” means a marijuana retailer licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission. 

 

“Marijuana Wholesaler” means a marijuana wholesaler licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission.  

 

 

Section 2.  Newberg Development Code, Zoning Use Table, Section 15.305.020 shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

See Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

 

Section 3.  Newberg Development Code, Zoning Use Table, Section 15.305.030 shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

See Exhibit A, Attachment 2 

 

Section 4.  Newberg Development Code, Stream Corridor Overlay Subdistrict, Section 15.342.110 

is amended to read as follows:  

 

15.342.110 Prohibited uses and activities. 

The following activities or uses are prohibited within this subdistrict: 

5/16/16
PAGE 104 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 4 

A. Except as provided in NMC 15.342.040(R), the planting or propagation of any plant identified 

as a nuisance plant as determined by a qualified botanist or indicated as a nuisance plant on the 

Newberg plant list. 

B. The removal of native trees that are greater than six inches in diameter at breast height, except 

as is otherwise permitted within this chapter. 

C. Any use dealing with hazardous substances or materials, including but not limited to gas 

service stations. 

D. Public pathways, except those in conjunction with public lands, public parks or 

public easements that have been acquired by other than eminent domain. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. 

Code 2001 § 151.475.] 

E. Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

F. Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers. 

 

Section 5.  Newberg Development Code, Civic Corridor Overlay Subdistrict, Section 15.350.030 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.350.030 Permitted buildings and uses. 

All uses permitted in the underlying primary district are permitted within the CC subdistrict 

except as follows: 

A. In addition to the buildings and uses permitted conditionally in NMC 15.305.020, 

the planning commission may grant a conditional use permit for any of the 

following buildings and uses in accordance with a Type III procedure: 

1. Facilities which exist for the purpose of providing for the temporary care and/or 

lodging of adult indigent persons. 

2. Hospitals. 

B. The following uses are prohibited within the CC subdistrict: 

1. Automobile sales, new and used. 

2. Car washes, coin-operated or mechanical. 

3. Garages, repair. 

4. Service stations. [Amended during 11/13 supplement; Ord. 2561, 4-1-02. Code 2001 

§ 151.526.3.] 

5.  Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

6. Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers and Retailers. 

5/16/16
PAGE 105 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15342.html#15.342.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15305.html#15.305.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=226
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=161
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=197
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2561.pdf


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 5 

Section 6.  Newberg Development Code, Bypass Interchange Overlay, Section 15.356.050 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.356.050 Prohibited uses. 

A. Several commercial types of uses are permitted outright or with conditional use approval in 

Newberg’s industrial districts (M-1, M-2, and M-3). The area within the Newberg UGB near the 

Oregon 219 Interchange is generally planned for industrial use. To protect the interchange area 

from commercial development, the following uses are prohibited within the M-1, M-2, and M-3 

districts within the boundaries of the bypass interchange overlay: 

1. Automobile sales, new and used. 

2. Billboards. 

3. Car washes. 

4. Convenience grocery stores. 

5. Restaurants larger than 2,000 square feet or with drive-up service windows. 

6. Service stations. 

7. Drive-in theaters. 

8. Auction sales. 

9. Bakeries, retail. 

10. Building material sales. 

11. Driving ranges. 

12. Feed and seed stores. 

13. Miniature golf courses. 

14. Skating rinks. 

15. Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

16. Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and 

Retailers. 

B. The industrial commercial subdistrict of the M-4 district shall not be applied within the 

boundaries of the BI overlay. [Ord. 2734 § 1 (Exh. B), 3-7-11; Ord. 2708 § 2, 12-1-08; 

Ord. 2602, 9-20-04. Code 2001 § 151.531.4.] 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 106 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=197
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=247
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=141.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2734.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2708.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2602.pdf


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 6 

Section 7.  Newberg Development Code, Interim Industrial Overlay, Section 15.358.030 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.358.030 Permitted uses. 

All uses of land and water that are permitted in the underlying zoning district(s) are also 

permitted in the interim industrial overlay, with the exception of those uses listed in 

NMC 15.358.050. In addition, the following are permitted: 

A. Contractor’s equipment or storage. 

B. Construction material storage. [Ord. 2720 § 1(5), 11-2-09. Code 2001 § 151.532.2.] 

C. Recreational Marijuana Producer (indoor). 

D. Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates. 

 

Section 8.  Newberg Development Code, Interim Industrial Overlay, Section 15.358.050 is 

amended to read as follows: 

15.358.050 Prohibited uses. 

The following uses are prohibited in the interim industrial overlay: 

A. Cemeteries. 

B. Garbage dumps, sanitary landfills. 

C. Parks. 

D. Permanent buildings. 

E. Wrecking yards for motor vehicles, building materials, and other similar items. 

[Ord. 2720 § 1(5), 11-2-09. Code 2001 § 151.532.4.] 

F. Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

G. Recreational Marijuana Retailers. 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 107 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15358.html#15.358.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2720.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=64
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=302
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2720.pdf


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 7 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance 2016-2801 

Findings –File DCA-16-001 

Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers,   

 Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers  
 

 

I. Statewide Planning Goals - relevant goals 

 Goal 1, Citizen Involvement, requires the provision of opportunities for citizens to be 

 involved in all phases of the planning process.  

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting on 

February 1, 2016. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on February 4, 2016 at a public meeting to review 

potential place, time and manner regulations for Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, 

Research Certificates and Retailers. The Planning Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing 

on April 14, 2016. The City Council considered the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a 

public hearing on May 16, 2016 and decided whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. 

The development code amendment process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the 

planning process.  

Goal 2, Land Use Planning, requires the development of a process and policy framework that 

acts as a basis for all land use decisions.  

Finding: The Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

proposal is supportive of this goal because it was developed following city procedures for legislative 

action. 

II. Newberg Comprehensive Plan - relevant policies 

A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that 

offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning process.  

 

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting on 

February 1, 2016. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on February 4, 2016 at a public meeting to review 

potential place, time and manner regulations for Recreational Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research 

Certificates and Retailers. The Planning Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing on April 

14, 2016. The City Council considered the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a public 

hearing on May 16, 2016 and decided whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. The 

development code amendment process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the 

planning process.  

B. LAND USE PLANNING GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to 

implement statewide and local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and cultural 

resources and needs. 

 

Finding: The Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers 

proposal is supportive of this goal because it was developed following city procedures for legislative 

action. 

5/16/16
PAGE 108 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2801 PAGE 8 

H. THE ECONOMY GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base.  

1. General Policies  

c. The City will encourage the creation of a diversified employment base, the strengthening of 

trade centers and the attraction of both capital and labor intensive enterprises.  

g. The City shall encourage business and industry to locate within the Newberg City limits. 

 

Finding:  The city encourages new businesses to develop within the city. A Recreational Marijuana 

Wholesale, Laboratory, Research Certificate and Retail operations are a legal operation under State law. 

Allowing Recreational Marijuana Wholesale, Laboratory, Research Certificate and Retail operations as a 

permitted or conditional use as represented in Exhibit A, Attachments 1 and 2 is consistent with this 

Comprehensive Plan goal. 

III. Conclusion:  The proposed development code amendments meet the applicable requirements of 

the Statewide Planning Goals, and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan, and should be approved.  

  

 

5/16/16
PAGE 109 



#
Use

R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C CF I AR AI
Notes and 

Special UseStandards

100 AGRICULTURALUSES

Def. Horticulture P P P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1)

Def.
Livestock and poultry 

farming
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Def.
Home gardening

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Home livestock and 

poultry raising
S S S NMC Title 6

200 RESIDENTIAL USES

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

detached

P(2) P P(3) P C(4) C(5) P P(6)
Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

attached

S(2) S S(3) S C(4) C(5) P P(6)

NMC15.415.050; subject to 

density limits of 

NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.
Manufactured homeon 

individual lot
S(2) S S(3) P(7) S P(6)

NMC15.445.050 –15.445.0

70; subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.
Manufactured dwelling 

park
S S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def.
Mobile home park

S S S
NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def.
Manufactured home 

subdivision
S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def. Dwelling, two-

family (duplex)

P(2) P P C P C(4)
P(8)/C(

5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, multifamily

C P P C P C(4)
P(8)/C(

5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, accessory
C S S S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article V

Def.
Dwelling, mixed use

P(9) P(10)
P(8)/C(

5)
P(11) C C

Def.

Dwelling, caretaker

P P P C P(12)

Limited to one per lot, and 

allowed whenever 

theuse requires the on-site 

residence of such person.

Def. Dormitory C P P P

Def.
Home occupation(no 

more than one outside 

paid employee)

S S S(13) S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S S S(13) NMC15.415.060

Def. Home occupation(more 

than one outside paid 

employee)

C C C(13) C C C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C C C(13) NMC15.415.060

300

310

Def.
Family child care home

P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) Chapter 657AORS

312 Day care P P P C P P P P C C C C P P P(14) Chapter 657AORS

Def.

Residential care 

home (5 or fewer 

people)
P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) ORS 197.665

Def. Residential care 

facility (6 – 15 people)

C P P C P C C P ORS 197.665

315 Group care facility(16+ 

people)
C C C C C P

316 Hospital C C C C P P P

Def. Prison C C C C

320 ASSEMBLY

321 Religious institution, 

place of worship
P P P P P P P P P P(29) C P

322
Private club, lodge, 

meeting hall
C C P P C P

330 SCHOOLS

Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

Newberg Development Code – Zoning Use Table 

INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC USES
INSTITUTIONAL CARE AND HOUSING

Chapter 

15.305
ZONING 

USE 

15.305.020 Zoning use table - Use Districts.

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg06/Newberg06.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665


330
School, primary or 

secondary
P P P P C

331 College P P P P P P P(15) C P

332
Commercial educational 

services
C C C C P P P C

340
PARKS AND OPEN 

SPACEs

341 Open space P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

342 Park P P P P P P P P P P(16) P(17) P

Def. Golf course P P P P(17)

350 PUBLIC SERVICES

351 Community services C C C C P P P P C P

352 Emergency services P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Pound, dog or cat C C C P P C C

Def. Cemetery C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C Chapter 97.46ORS

360 TRANSPORTATION

Def. Transportation facilities 

and improvements

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Transit center P P P P P P

Def. Parking facility P C C P P(18) C P P P P P

Def. Airport, landing field C C P

Def. Heliport, helipad C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P

Def. Marina C

Pilings, piers, docks, and 

similar in-

waterstructures

C

370 UTILITIES

Def. Basic utilities P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def.
Utility distribution plant 

or yard
P P P

Def.
Wastewater treatment 

plant
C P C

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility incorporated into 

existing structure/utility 

pole and no taller than 

18 feet above existing 

structure/utility pole

C C C C C S S S S S S S S S S
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are 100 

feet or less in height, 

except those incorporated 

into an existingstructure no 

taller than 18 feet above 

that structure.

C C C C S(19) S(19) P C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are over 

100 feet

C C C C C C C C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

400 COMMERCIAL USES

410 COMMERCIAL OFFICES

411 Medical office C P P(20) P P(21) P

412
Local business office

P(22) P(20) P P(21)

420

421 Retail sales – General P(20) P
P(15) 

(21)
P P(23)

422
Retail sales – Bulk 

outdoor
P C P

423
Retail sales – 

Convenience
P(20) P P(21) P P(24) P(25)

Def. Temporary merchant S S(21) NMC5.15.050 et seq.

Medical marijuana 

dispensary
P(35) P(35)

425
Retail food and 

beverage production
S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VIII

430

430
Eating and drinking – 

Alcohol-related
P P(21) P Requires liquor license

430
Eating and drinking – Non-

alcohol-related
P(20) P P(21) P P P C(26)

440
COMMERCIAL SERVICES

441 Personal services P P(20) P P(21) P

442 Commercial services P(20) P P(21)

443
Commercial vehicle 

service P C P(27) P P(28)

Def. Kennel, commercial C C C P P C C

450

COMMERCIAL SALES AND RENTALS

EATING AND DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS

COMMERCIAL RECREATION

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=97.46
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg05/Newberg0515.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html


451
Commercial recreation 

– Indoors
P P(15) P(29) P(29)

452 Commercial recreation 

– Outdoors

P C

453 Commercial recreation 

– Motor-vehicle-related

C C(33)

460 COMMERCIAL LODGING

Def.
Vacation rental home

C C S S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13)
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VII

Def.
Bed and breakfast(2 or 

fewer rooms)
C S S S S S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Bed and breakfast(3 or 

more rooms)
C C C C C S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Hotel or motel P P(15) P C(26)

Def.
Recreational vehicle 

park
C C C C C NMC15.445.170

500 INDUSTRIAL USES

501 Traded sector industry 

office
P(30) P(30) P P P P P P(33)

502 Industrial services C P P P P(33)

503
Wholesale and industry 

sales
C(31) P(31) P P P P(33)

504
Warehouse, storage, 

and distribution
P(32) P P P P(33)

505
Self-service storage

P P P P P

506 Light manufacturing P P P P P(33)

507
Heavy manufacturing

P(34) P C

508 Waste-related C C

600 MISCELLANEOUS USES

Def.

Accessory 

buildingand use incidental 

to other permitted usesin 

the zone

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

permitted uses in the zone 

and not defined or 

categorized

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

conditional uses in the 

zone and not defined or 

categorized

C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Medical Marijuana 

Processor
P P P P

Medical Marijuana Grow  

Site
P(36) P(36) P(36) C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Recreational Marijuana 

Processor
X X X X X X C(38) X X P(37) P(37) P(37) P(37) X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Indoor)
X X X X X X X X X P P P P X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Outdoor)
X X X X X X X X X C C C C X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Retailer
X X X X X

P(38)/ 

(39)/ 

(40)

P(38)/ 

(39)/ 

(40)

P(38)

/(39)/

(40)

P(38)

/(39)

/(40)

X X X X X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Wholesaler
X X X X X X

C(31)/

(38)
X X P(38) P(38) P(38) P(38) X X X P(38) X

Recreational Marijuana 

Laboratories
X X X X X P P P P P P P P P X P X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Research Certificate
X X X X X P P P P P P P P P X P X X

Key:

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations

Notes.

(2) Limited to one per lot as a permitted use. More than one per lot allowed only through a conditional use permit or planned unit development, subject to density limits 

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit

(1) Limited to sites with preexisting agricultural uses, including at time of annexation.

(3) Permitted on individual lots created prior to November 17, 1992. Homes on individual lots created on or after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through the planned unit 

development process.

(4) The permitted density shall be stated on the conditional use permit.

of NMC 15.405.010(B).

(5) The dwelling units must front onto Hancock or Second Street. No more than 30 percent of a single street frontage of a block may be occupied by residential uses. Contiguous 

residential street frontage must be less than 60 lineal feet. Density and parking standards for allowable dwelling units must be met.

(7) The homes are not subject to the development standards set forth in NMC 15.445.050 through 15.445.070.

(6) One residence per lot with the addition of a tie-down or hangar for an airplane. At a minimum, a paved tie-down or hangar shall be provided on the property, or the property shall 

include permanent rights to a private hangar within the subdivision. See Chapter 15.336 NMC.

(8) The units must be located on the same lots as another use permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-3 zone and may not occupy the first floor storefront area (the portion of 

the building closest to the primary street). There shall be no density limitation. Private parking areas or garages are not required for dwelling units located within buildings in 

existence prior to and including June 30, 1999. Parking shall be provided for all new dwelling units within any building constructed after June 30, 1999, in private parking areas or 

garages on the basis of one parking space for each dwelling unit.

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html


(20) Businesses in the C-1 zone that have hours of operation between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. require a conditional use permit.

(37) Indoor use only.

(39) 1,000 foot separation between retailer to retailer premises and 1,000 foot separation between retailer to dispensary premises.

(40) Operating hours limited to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 

1    Code reviser’s note: Section 25 of Ordinance 2763 provides:

(15) Facility over 40,000 square feet gross floor area requires a conditional use permit.

(16) Allowed in areas designated in industrial area plans.

(12) One residence of area not more than 40 percent of the area of the hangar floor, up to a maximum of 1,500 square feet, for an airport caretaker or security officer on each 

separate parcel.

(11) Must be located above ground floor commercial uses.

(14) Allowed exclusively for employers or employees of businesses located within this district.

(13) Permitted in existing dwelling units only. New dwelling units may not be created for this use unless the dwelling unit would otherwise be allowed.

SECTION 25: Grace period for previously permitted or conditional uses. Where an applicant demonstrates that a particular use was a permitted or 

conditional use on a specific property immediately prior to adoption of this ordinance, but that the use is no longer either a permitted or conditional use on 

that property due to this ordinance, the applicant may establish the use as either a permitted or conditional use, as provided in the prior code, provided 

the use is legally commenced prior to January 1, 2018.

(36) Allows up to 12 mature plants; indoor operations only.

(10) Permitted above any permitted use in the C-2 zone. There shall be no density limitation. Parking shall be provided in private parking areas or garages on the basis of one 

parking space for each dwelling unit.

(9) Permitted on the ground floor, one per lot in conjunction with any other use permitted or conditional use in the C-1 zone. On upper floors, dwelling units are unlimited and one 

parking space per dwelling unit is required.

(23) Limited to secondhand stores.

(31) Allowed indoors only.

(28) Limited to card lock fueling only. Retail services are limited to self-vending services.

(29) Permitted provided the structure is designed for easy conversion to industrial use, including not having fixed seating.

(30) Limited to 10,000 square feet maximum floor area.

(32) Allowed indoors only. Outdoor use requires a conditional use permit.

(27) Limited to service stations.

(17) Limited to facilities owned or operated by a public agency.

(18) Parking garages are a conditional use, and must have first floor street frontage of 40 feet or less for ingress or egress. First floor development must be commercial.

(21) Drive-up service windows accessory to an existing business on the site with walk-in customer service, such as a drive-up bank window, are allowed only with a conditional use 

permit. Otherwise, drive-up service windows, except those in service on April 1, 2002, are prohibited. Changes in use will not be allowed.

(24) Store size is limited to 2,000 square feet gross floor area.

(19) A conditional use permit is required if the facility is less than 2,000 feet from the nearest telecommunication facility.

(25) Store size is limited to 5,000 square feet gross floor area.

(26) Use must demonstrate that it is compatible with airport operations.

(22) Retail sales of goods on site not allowed.

(38) The use is not allowed within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public park, a public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under ORS 

339.020 or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described in ORS 339.030 (1)(a). Distance is measured in a straight line in a radius extending 

for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on the boundary line of the real property comprising an existing public park, public elementary or secondary 

school or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school to the closest point of the premises of a recreational processor, wholesaler or retailer.  

(33) Must be aviation-related. See Chapter 15.332 NMC.

(34) Limited to expansion or change of existing heavy manufacturing uses.

(35) Shall not be located at the same address as a state-registered marijuana grow site, or within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public park, a public elementary or 

secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under ORS 339.020 or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described in ORS 339.030 

(1)(a). Distance is measured in a straight line in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on the boundary line of the real property 

comprising an existing public park, public elementary or secondary school or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school to the closest point of the premises of a 

dispensary. The premises consist of the dispensary building, or the portion of the building used for a dispensary. Shall not be located within 1,000 feet of another medical 

marijuana dispensary. Operating hours are limited to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.



600 MISCELLANEOUS USES R-1/PD R-1/0.1 R-1/0.4 R-1/6.6 R-1/SP R-2/PD R-2/SP SD/LDR SD/MMR R-3/PD RP/SP RP/LU AO ARO C-1/SP C-2/LU C-2/PD C-2/SP C-3/LU SD/V SD/NC SD/H CC CF/RF RF IO M-1/SP SD/E FHO II AIO H SC BI

Medical Marijuana 

Processor
P P

Medical Marijuana Grow 

Site
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Recreational Marijuana 

Processor
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P X X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Indoor)
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P P X P X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Outdoor)
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X C C X C X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Retailer
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/

(3)

P(1)/(2)/(

3)
X X X X X X X X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Wholesaler
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P(1) P(1) X P(1) X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Laboratories
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P P P P P P P P P X X X P P X P P X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Research Certificate
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P P P P P P P P P X X P P P X P P X X X

Key:

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations

(2) 1,000 foot separation between retailer to retailer premises and 1,000 foot separation between retailer to dispensary premises.

(3) Operating hours limited to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 

15.305.030 Zoning use table - Use  Subdistricts.

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit

Exhibit A, Attachment 2

(1) The use is not allowed within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public park, a public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under ORS 339.020 or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as 

described in ORS 339.030 (1)(a). Distance is measured in a straight line in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on the boundary line of the real property comprising an existing public park, public elementary or 

secondary school or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school to the closest point of the premises of a recreational retailer or wholesaler.  



L'fieil®ergl||so.
RESOLUTION No. 2016-3253

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AN AMENDMENT TO THE NEWBERG
MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR PLACE, TIME
AND MANNER REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA
WHOLESALERS, LABORATORIES, RESEARCH CERTIFICATES AND
RETAILERS

RECITALS:

The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the Oregon Medical
Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill covering recreational marijuana
and modifications to the medical marijuana program.

1.

On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on medical and
recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At its Business Session on September 8th the City Council
established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of Councilors Rourke, Bacon and
McKinney along with non-voting member Mayor Andrews.

2.

The Subcommittee held its third meeting on January 12, 2016. A proposed timeline was included in their
packet of material to address recreational marijuana place, time and manner for recreational wholesalers,
laboratories, research certificates and retailers. The Oregon Liquor Control Commission has indicated they will
start issuing licenses for retailers in the 3rd Quarter of 2016.

3.

The Subcommittee subsequently passed a motion 3-0 directing staff to create a Request for Council Action to
initiate the Development Code amendment process for Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories,
Research Certificates and Retailers to bring forward for Council consideration on February 1, 2016.

4.

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

The City Council initiates an amendment to the Newberg Municipal Code, Title 15 Development Code for
Place, Time and Manner Regulations for Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research
Certificates and Retailers. This starts the public process to study the proposed amendments.

1.

By initiating this amendment, the council does not commit to taking any specific action on the proposal. It
only wishes to give the amendment lull consideration in a public hearing.

2.

>
EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 2, 2016

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 1st day of February, 2016.

Sue Ryan, City Recbrder

ATTEST by the Mayor thisÿ day of February, 2016.

Boft A ndrewl Mayor

PAGE 1CITY OF NEWBERG-. RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3253

Attachment 1



Attachment 2





Attachment 3



Attachment 4



Attachment 5



Attachment 6







































 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2016-3279 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution   XX    Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3279 

SUBJECT:  Appointment of Joe Hannan as city 

manager, effective June 6, 2016. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Resolution: Truman Stone 

Dept.: City Attorney’s Office 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3279 appointing Joe Hannan as city manager effective June 6, 2016. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

The Charter of the city provides in Chapter VIII, Appointive Officers, Section 34, city manager as follows: 
 

The office of city manager is established as the administrative head of the city government.  The city 

manager is responsible to the mayor and councilors for the proper administration of all city business.  

The city manager will assist the mayor and councilors in the development of city policies, and carry 

out policies established by ordinances, resolutions, and orders. 

 

On January 19, 2016 the council passed Resolution 2016-3251, adopting procedures for the recruitment and 

selection of a city manager. To date, the city has followed these adopted procedures. The final step in the 

process is to vote in an open council meeting regarding approval of the finalist and approval of a contract. 

 

The city has conducted an extensive, nationwide hiring process using the services of Bob Murray & 

Associates. After final review, the council selected Joe Hannan as its first choice for city manager.  Mr. 

Hannan has indicated that he desires to serve as city manager and will accept appointment. By this 

Resolution No. 2016-3279, the city appoints Mr. Hannan as the city manager of Newberg and ratifies the 

contract that city staff and Mr. Hannan have negotiated.  The appointment will be effective on June 6 and he 

will be sworn in that evening at the council meeting.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The city manager will receive an annual salary of $140,000.00. The salary and benefits 

are reasonable and comparable with city managers working in comparable cities.  This position is budgeted 

in both the FY 15-16 and 16-17 budgets. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: The city manager is the chief executive officer of Newberg. The city 

manager is a Charter officer of the city of Newberg. The city manager is responsible for implementing 

policy of the council, directing city administration, and achieves the goals that the council set forth. 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 110 



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2016-3279 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3279 

 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JOE HANNAN TO THE POSITION OF CITY 

MANAGER OF NEWBERG EFFECTIVE JUNE 6, 2016  

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The Charter of the city provides in Chapter VIII, Appointive Officers, Section 34, city manager as 

follows: 

 

The office of city manager is established as the administrative head of the city government.  The city 

manager is responsible to the mayor and councilors for the proper administration of all city business.  

The city manager will assist the mayor and councilors in the development of city policies, and carry 

out policies established by ordinances, resolutions, and orders. 

 

2. On January 19, 2016 the council passed Resolution 2016-3251, adopting procedures for the 

recruitment and selection of a city manager. To date, the city has followed these adopted procedures. 

 

3. The city has conducted an extensive, nationwide search using the services of Bob Murray & 

Associates. 

 

4. The council conducted multiple interviews of candidates, selected three finalists, and received input 

from city employees and community members on the three finalists. The council then conducted 

final interviews in executive session. 

 

5. After deliberation, the council has selected Joe Hannan as city manager of the city of Newberg, who 

the council determined to be the best candidate to fill this position. 

 

6. The council directed Bob Murray to extend an offer of employment to the finalist, and staff to 

negotiate the contract. 

 

7. The final step in the adopted process is to vote in an open council meeting regarding approval of the 

finalist and to approve the contract. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The city council appoints Joe Hannan as city manager for the city of Newberg, Oregon, effective 

June 6, 2016. 

 

2. Pursuant to council direction, staff negotiated a contract with Mr. Hannan. This contract is attached 

as Exhibit A and by this reference incorporated.  The council ratifies the contract with Mr. Hannan 

and authorized the Mayor to execute the contract on behalf of the city. 

 

//// 

 

//// 

5/16/16
PAGE 111 



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2016-3279 PAGE 2 

 

 

3. The city council welcomes Joe Hannan as city manager for the city of Newberg. 

 

  
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is: June 6, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 17th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 112 



City Manager - Page 1  

 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT 

AGREEMENT 

  
 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

 
and 

 

Joe Hannan 

 
Effective June 6, 2016 

  

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 113 



City Manager - Page 2  

 

 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

between 

CITY OF NEWBERG 

and 

JOE HANNAN 

 

 

R E C I T A L S 

 

 This Agreement is entered into this 6th day of June 2016, by and between the City of 

Newberg, Oregon, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and Joe Hannan, 

hereinafter referred to as “City Manager,” both of whom understand as follows:   

 

  

1. The Charter of the City of Newberg provides in Chapter VIII, Appointive Officers, Section 

34, City Manager as follows: 

 

“(a) The office of city manager is established as the administrative head of the city 

government. The city manager is responsible to the mayor and city councilors for the 

proper administration of all city business. The city manager will assist the mayor and city 

councilors in the development of city policies, and carry out policies established by 

ordinances, resolutions, and orders.” 
 

2. The Council has directed staff to enter into discussions with Joe Hannan concerning his 

possible appointment as City Manager. 

 

3. Joe Hannan has indicated that he desires to serve and would accept the appointment of City 

Manager. 

 

4. By entering into this Agreement, Joe Hannan accepts the appointment to the position of 

City Manager. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the City and Joe 

Hannan hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. APPOINTMENT.  The City appoints and Joe Hannan hereby accepts the position as the 

Manager of the City with the title of City Manager of the City of Newberg. This appointment is 

effective the 6th day of June, 2016 at which time Joe Hannan accepts the duties and responsibilities 

of the position. This appointment is in accordance with the Newberg City Charter, VIII, Appointive 

Officers, Section 34, City Manager.  

 

 

 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 114 



City Manager - Page 3  

2. DUTIES.   
 

A. The City hereby employs the City Manager to perform the functions and duties 

specified in the City Charter and to perform such other legally permissible and proper 

duties the City Council shall from time to time assign. Attached is the job description which 

is attached as Exhibit “A”, and by this reference incorporated. 

 

B. The City Manager shall devote full time to the performance of his duties and shall 

not perform any additional services without the approval of the City Council, as provided 

herein.  In the event the City Manager desires to teach, consult or provide services to 

another party or person, he shall first provide written notice of such intent to the Mayor 

and each member of the City Council.  If after ten (10) days from sending notice, the Mayor 

or any member of the City Council does not inform the City Manager of an objection, the 

City Manager may perform the requested teaching, consulting, or outside service.  In the 

event the Mayor or any member of the City Council, within ten (10) days of sending notice, 

informs the City Manager of an objection, the City Manager shall not perform the requested 

teaching, consulting, or outside services, without first obtaining formal approval by a 

majority of the City Council.  In no event shall the City Manager perform teaching, 

consulting or outside services that would create a conflict with his position of City Manager 

or conflict with the best interest of the City.  Any objection by the Mayor or a member of 

the City Council shall be based upon the best interests of the City.  In performing any 

teaching, consulting or outside service, the City Manager may use accrued administrative 

and/or vacation leave. 

 

C. It is recognized that the City Manager must devote a great deal of time outside the 

normal office hours on business for the City, and to that end the City Manager shall be 

allowed to establish an appropriate work schedule. 

 

 

3. TERM. 

  A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right 

of the Mayor, with the consent of the City Council, in accordance with the City Charter, from 

terminating the services of the City Manager, and otherwise dismissing him from employment, at 

any time, without the showing of any cause, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 11, 

Severance Pay, except that Section 11, Severance Pay, shall not be applicable to a termination and 

dismissal occasioned for the reasons set forth in Section 4, below. 

 

  B.  This Agreement is for an initial term of approximately three years, commencing 

on the date entered into as above-stated and continuing until June 30, 2019. 

 

  C. This Agreement may be extended by mutual agreement of parties. The parties shall 

discuss extension of the contract on or before six (6) months prior to the end of the initial term. 

   

4. CAUSE FOR TERMINATION & DISCIPLINE.  The City shall have no obligation to 

pay the aggregate severance sum designated in the Section 11 entitled "Severance Pay" in the event 

the City Manager is terminated under this Agreement for the following reasons: 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 115 



City Manager - Page 4  

 

A. The City Manager is convicted of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, 

convicted of a felony, or indicted for a crime(s). In the event the City Manager is not 

convicted of said crime(s) or does not plead guilty to other crime(s) in settlement of charges 

for which he was indicted, he shall receive the severance pay in accordance with Section 

11. However, he will not be entitled to pay for time following termination for indictment 

until severance pay is paid. 

 

B.  His termination for just cause as provided in the City’s personnel rules.  Examples 

of terminations for just cause include, but are not limited to: failure to be truthful during 

internal investigation, falsifying official reports, and other action that may reasonably 

prevent him from carrying out his duties as City Manager. The City Manager shall be given 

fair notice of the cause that could lead to his termination and reasonable opportunity to 

respond prior to termination. The City expects the City Manager to adhere to the highest 

professional standards, including the ICMA Code of Ethics as currently adopted or 

hereafter amended. His actions shall always comply with those standards. 

 

C. It is recognized that the City Manager works without close supervision and it may 

be necessary to investigate any allegations being brought against the City Manager. In the 

event the Council has reasonable grounds to conduct such an investigation, the City 

Manager may be placed on administrative leave without pay for a maximum of two (2) 

weeks, while such an investigation occurs. If the investigation does not result in termination 

or discipline of the City Manager, the City Manager shall be compensated for the two (2) 

weeks leave. 

 

D. The City is not obligated to conduct any type of progressive discipline with the City 

Manager.  It is recognized that any type of discipline necessary will have an impact on his 

ability to perform the duties of the City Manager. However, in the event the City Council 

takes disciplinary action, which is less than termination, the City may suspend the City 

Manager without pay for a period not-to-exceed two (2) weeks. Suspension beyond that 

time shall be considered termination. 

 

E. In the event the City Manager is terminated for just cause and, in resulting litigation, 

a court of competent jurisdiction rules that there was not just cause to terminate the City 

Manager, the only remedy available to the City Manager is payment of severance pay set 

out in Section 11. The City shall have no obligation to re-instate the City Manager. 

 

5. RESIGNATION.  In the event the City Manager wishes to voluntarily resign his position 

during the term of this Agreement, he shall be required to give the City one (1) month written 

notice of such intention.  The City Manager will cooperate in every way with the smooth and 

normal transfer to a newly appointed manager. A voluntary resignation does not invoke Section 

11, Severance Pay. 

 

6. COMPENSATION. The City agrees to pay the City Manager the following compensation 

for the above-mentioned services as City Manager: 

 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 116 



City Manager - Page 5  

A. Base Salary:  An annual base salary of $140,000.00 commencing upon employment, 

and payable in installments at the place and time as other City employees are paid. The 

base salary may be adjusted by the City Council from time to time. The budget process 

may increase compensation as other employees receive increases such as cost of living 

adjustments. Beginning July 1, 2017, the City Manager shall be entitled to cost of living 

adjustments as other non-represented employees receive. 

 

B.  Retirement: The City Manager shall be placed in the Public Employee Retirement 

System. The City shall pay the employees’ portion to PERS. This is in accordance with 

other managerial employees of the City.   

 

C. Fringe benefits: The City Manager is entitled to fringe benefits equal to that of other 

employees employed in the administrative capacity, which includes health benefits 

(currently at 90% paid premium), except the City shall pay the amount of a premium 

due for term life insurance in the amount of three (3) times the City Manager’s annual 

salary, including all increase and base salaries of the life of this agreement. The City 

Manager shall name the beneficiary of the life insurance policy. 

    

D. The City hereby agrees to pay the expenses of the City Manager's necessary travel 

lodging and meal expenses (consistent with City policies) to represent the City at the 

annual League of Oregon Cities' Conference, and conferences or meetings of state 

committees or commissions upon which the City Manager serves as a member, and for 

such other official meetings or travel as are reasonably necessary for the professional 

advancement of the City Manager as approved by the City Council. said Membership 

on state commissions or committees is subject to the approval of the City Council.  

Expenditures are subject to the budgetary process of the City.   

 

E. The City hereby agrees to pay the normal business expenses of the City Manager such 

as travel expenses, mileage, and other normal out of pocket business expenses at the 

rate designated by the personnel manual and subject to the budgetary process of the 

City. 

 

F. The City shall support the City Manager with equipment and other electronic means 

such as cellular telephone reimbursement in accordance with the practices of other 

managerial personnel of the City, which shall be a minimum reimbursement of $80.00 

per month. Since the City Manager is a Charter appointed position, similar to the City 

Attorney, it is anticipated the City Manager will receive the same level of support, 

expenses, and equipment as the City Attorney. Such expenses are subject to the 

budgetary process of the City. 

 

 

 

7. SICK LEAVE AND VACATION.   
 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 117 



City Manager - Page 6  

 A. Sick Leave.  Upon commencing employment, the City Manager shall be credited 

with 40 hours of sick leave. City Manager shall then accrue sick leave at the highest rate 

currently provided to the City of Newberg’s employees. 

 B. Vacation.   City Manager shall accrue vacation leave on an annual basis at the 

City of Newberg’s current benefit equivalent to an employee that has been employed 5 

years but less than 10 years (15 vacation days per year (120 hours)). The City Manager is 

entitled to accrue all unused vacation and sick leave subject to the same limitations as other 

employees of the City of Newberg, and in the event City Manager’s employment is 

terminated, either voluntarily or involuntarily, City Manager shall be compensated for all 

accrued vacation time, paid holidays, and unused administrative leave to the date of 

termination.  

  

8. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE.  The City Manager shall be credited with fifteen (15) days 

of administrative leave on July 1, 2016, and shall annually be credited with an additional fifteen 

(15) days. Unused administrative leave does not accumulative or carry over from one fiscal year 

to the next.  

 

9. ATTENDANCE AT NATIONAL CONFERENCES.  The City Manager is allowed to 

attend national conferences as the budget of the City allows. 

 

10. EVALUATION. The City Council shall evaluate the work performance of the City 

Manager annually. The City Council may choose to perform an evaluation on or around the six-

month anniversary of the City Manager’s commencement of work under this contract as an interim 

evaluation.  The City Council shall communicate its evaluation to the City Manager in Executive 

Session.  The failure of the City Council to conduct an annual evaluation shall not operate as a 

defense to any action by the City with respect to this Agreement or the employment of the City 

Manager.  Consideration shall be given on an annual basis to adjust compensation at or about the 

time of the evaluation. 

 

11. SEVERANCE PAY.  In the event of any involuntary termination of the City Manager 

during the term of this Agreement, he shall be entitled to severance pay in the manner as follows: 

   

 A. City shall provide a minimum severance payment equal to six (6) months salary at 

the current rate of pay on the date of termination, including the cost of health insurance. 

This severance shall be paid as a lump sum unless otherwise agreed to by City and City 

Manager. The sum shall be paid within 30 days of termination. 

 

 B. City Manager shall be compensated for accrued time as provided in Section 7. 

 

 C. Termination by the City, as used in this paragraph, means the City Manager’s 

discharge or dismissal by the Mayor with consent of the City Council or the City Manager’s 

resignation following a salary reduction greater in percentage than an across-the-board 

reduction for all employees or failure to receive a salary increase equal to the increase 

received by all employees (commonly known as cost of living increase), or the City 

Manager’s resignation following a formal request to him by the City Council that he resign. 

This provision does not apply to a voluntary resignation by City Manager. 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 118 



City Manager - Page 7  

    

D.  Despite any contrary provision of Section 4, Cause for Termination, this Section, 

or any other part of this Agreement, all severance pay under this Section shall be paid only 

on or after the date the City Manager has a separation from service with the employer. 

 

12. BONDING.  The City shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of 

Employee under any law or ordinance. 

 

13. INDEMNIFICATION.  The City agrees that it shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify 

the City Manager from all demands, claims, suits, actions, errors, or other omissions in legal 

proceedings brought against the City Manager in his individual capacity or in his official capacity, 

or in his official capacity as agent or employee of the City, provided the incident arose while the 

City Manager was acting within the scope of his employment.  If in the good faith opinion of the 

City Manager, a conflict exists as regards to the defense of any such claim between the legal 

position of the City and the City Manager, the City Manager may engage counsel, in which event, 

the City shall indemnify the City Manager for the cost of legal counsel. 

 

14. APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement is construed under the laws of the State of Oregon 

and the Charter of the City of Newberg. 

 

15. ATTORNEY'S FEES.  In the event of any suit or action herein, the prevailing party in 

such suit or action shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees to be fixed by the trial court, and 

if an appeal is taken from the decision of the trial court, such further sum as may be fixed by the 

appellate court as reasonable attorney's fees in the appellate court, together with prevailing party 

costs and disbursements incurred therein. 

 

16. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT.  The City shall, by 

amendments to this Agreement, fix such other terms and conditions of employment, from time to 

time, as it may determine, relating to the performance by the City Manager with the agreement of 

said City Manager, provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent or in conflict with the 

provisions of this Agreement. 

 

17. SEVERABILITY.  It is understood and agreed that if any part, term, or provision of this 

Agreement is held by the courts to be illegal or in conflict with the laws of the State of Oregon, 

the validity of the remaining portion of the Agreement shall not be affected and the rights and 

obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 

particular part, term, or provision. 

 

 

[continued on the next page] 

  

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 119 



City Manager - Page 8  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate and 

affixed their signatures. 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG    CITY MANAGER 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor  Date   Joe Hannan   Date 

By Authority of a Resolution 2016-3279  

May 16, 2016 

 

 

 

 

This Agreement prepared by the City Attorney  

and APPROVED AS TO FORM & CONTENT: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Truman A. Stone, City Attorney Date 

 

 

Resolution 2016-3279 Exhibit A
5/16/16
PAGE 120 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3288 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3288 

SUBJECT:  A Resolution approving a new design 

and replacement of the existing downtown banners 

with new banners celebrating George Fox 

University’s 125th anniversary 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Jessica Pelz, AICP 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.: G-16-006 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3288 approving a new design and replacement of the 

existing downtown banners with new banners celebrating George Fox University’s 125th anniversary.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  On January 5, 2005, the Newberg City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-

2553, which created the downtown street banner program by approving the initial spring and fall banner 

designs and adopted an official Newberg slogan of “Newberg – Home of George Fox University”.  

Subsequent Resolutions (2005-2579, 2005-2607) approved summer and winter banner designs. In 2010, the 

Newberg City Council adopted Resolution No. 2010-2903, approving a new design for the fall banners, 

which were designed and paid for by George Fox University.  

 

The University is now requesting City Council approval to replace the existing banners with a new banner 

design celebrating the University’s 125th anniversary.  The proposed 125th anniversary banners would be 

hung in August and would remain for an entire year, barring other events that necessitate the banners be 

taken down, such as for the Special Olympics and holiday decorations. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Newberg Public Works Department currently handles all banner changes, and 

would be in charge of hanging the new banner as well.  George Fox University would pay for the design and 

fabrication of the new banners.  Therefore, there is not a fiscal impact to the city.  

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): Approval of the Resolution 

supports City Council goal #4: “Foster and encourage economic development in the community” by 

supporting one of our major community partners.  

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 121 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3288 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3288 

 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A NEW DESIGN AND REPLACEMENT OF 

THE EXISTING DOWNTOWN BANNERS WITH NEW BANNERS 

CELEBRATING GEORGE FOX UNIVERSITY’S 125TH
 ANNIVERSARY  

 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The Newberg City Council approved the downtown street banner program in 2005 through adoption 

of Resolutions No. 2005-2553, 2005-2579, and 2005-2607. The program is a collaboration between 

the City of Newberg and George Fox University, and the city adopted the slogan of “Newberg – 

Home of George Fox University” in order to support the banner program and to allow George Fox 

University’s name and/or logo to be included on the banners. The Resolutions approved four designs, 

one for each season, with the banners to be changed out quarterly.  

 

2. In 2010, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2010-2903, approving a new design for the fall 

banners, which were designed and paid for by George Fox University.  

 

3. George Fox University is now requesting City Council approval to replace the existing banners with 

a new banner design celebrating the University’s 125th anniversary.  The proposed 125th anniversary 

banners would be hung in August and would remain for an entire year, barring other events that 

necessitate the banners be taken down, such as for the Special Olympics and holiday decorations.  

George Fox University would pay for the design and fabrication of the new banners.  

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The George Fox University 125th anniversary banners are approved to replace the existing street 

banners in the downtown area, with the design as shown in Exhibit “A”. The anniversary banners are 

approved to remain in place for a one-year period, from August 2016 to August 2017.   

 

2. Exhibit “A” is hereby attached and by this reference approved.  

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: May 17, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 16th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

5/16/16
PAGE 122 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. 2016-3288
5/16/16
PAGE 123 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA INFORMATION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: May 16, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution       Motion        Information XX 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 2016-3292 
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Item: Nancy McDonald 

Dept.: Human Resources 

File No.:  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

Interim Human Resources Director Nancy McDonald is preparing Resolution 2016-3292, an update on 

PERS for the City Council meeting on May 16, 2016. The RCA for this Resolution will be sent out on 

Friday, May 13. 

 

 

 

 

5/16/16
PAGE 124 


	Agenda
	Public Works Week proclamation
	Planning Commissioner Appointment Noelle Torres
	Minutes
	Resolution 3276 Rejection of bids for Blaine Street stormwater
	Resolution 3300 Blaine Street easements
	ODOT noise variance
	Northside Community Church noise variance
	Resolution 3280 Sungard permitting software
	Resolution 3303 placeholder
	Resolution 3287 Illinois Street easements
	Resolution 3301 Waste Management franchise increase
	Ordinance 2801 RM Marijuana wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates producers and retailers
	Resolution 3279 Joe Hannan City Manager contract
	Resolution 3288 GFU banners
	Resolution 3292 placeholder



